
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 AGENDA

GOODHUE COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS

 ZUMBROTA, MN

AUGUST 10, 2023

10:00 A.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Disclosures of Interest

Review and approve the previous board meeting minutes.

July 18.pdf

Review and approve the county board agenda

Review and approve the following items on the consent agenda:

Approve Janet Ferguson Anniversary Date.

JF anniversary - board report.pdf

Approve Dan Schmidt Anniversary Date

DS anniversary Date.docx

Approve the 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant. 

2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant.pdf

Approve the 2022 Emergency Management Performance Grant. 

2022 Emergency Management Performance Grant.pdf

Approve Final Payment CSAH 11 Bridge.

Final Payment CSAH 11 Bridge.pdf

Approve Final Payment for SAP 025-599- 128 and SAP 025-599 -129.

Final Payment for SAP 025-599 -128 and SAP 025 -599- 129.pdf

Approve Tax & CAMA MnCCC Participation Agreement

Tyler Contract Amendment.pdf

Regular Agenda

Land Use Management Director's Report

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres from A -3 (Urban Fringe District) to R -1 (Suburban 

Residence District). Parcel 32.200.0310. Territorial Road Lake City, MN 55041. Part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 12 in Florence Township. 

CBPacket_Rigelman.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for IUP for up to Four Animal Units on a 5 Acre Parcel Zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District)

Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 horses to be kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District. Parcels 45.024.1901 

and 45.024.1100. 37533 County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw Township.  

CBPacket_Arntson.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for an Event Center and Resort Facility (Villa Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager))

Request for a Conditional Use Permit to continue the operations of an Event Center and Resort Facility permitted via IUP. The proposal includes remodeling existing structures and 

constructing additions to provide spaces for lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, and event spaces. 29847 County 2 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026. Parcels 32.160.0040 and 

32.012.0400. Blocks C, D, and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 12 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. CR (Commercial 

Recreational District).   

CBPacket_VillaMaria_2023.pdf

County Administrator's Report

Xcel Energy Letter Response

Xcel Binder.pdf

Finance Director's Report

Broadband Extension with Southeast MN Wifi LLC

Southeast Mn WiFi Extension 8.10.pdf

Goodhue County Soil & Water Conservation District

Annual Awards

Conservation Farmer of the Year.pdf

Woodland Manager Award.pdf

Extension Office Director's Report

4- H Update

Farm Family of the Year

Goodhue County Farm Family _ UMN Extension.pdf

For Your Information

2nd Quarter Financial Report

2nd Quarter 2023 Report.pdf

July 2023 Staffing Report

2023 Staffing Report.pdf

Cannon Valley Trail Grant Update

UPDATED 2023 Goodhue County Grant Approval Request -  Bridge and Bituminous Replacement Project.pdf

Project Status Report.

Project Status Report 10 Aug 23.pdf

Mighty Mississippi Clean Up Challenge Update

County Board Committee Reports

New and Old Business

ADJOURN

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

2.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 AGENDA

GOODHUE COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS

 ZUMBROTA, MN

AUGUST 10, 2023

10:00 A.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Disclosures of Interest

Review and approve the previous board meeting minutes.

July 18.pdf

Review and approve the county board agenda

Review and approve the following items on the consent agenda:

Approve Janet Ferguson Anniversary Date.

JF anniversary - board report.pdf

Approve Dan Schmidt Anniversary Date

DS anniversary Date.docx

Approve the 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant. 

2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant.pdf

Approve the 2022 Emergency Management Performance Grant. 

2022 Emergency Management Performance Grant.pdf

Approve Final Payment CSAH 11 Bridge.

Final Payment CSAH 11 Bridge.pdf

Approve Final Payment for SAP 025-599- 128 and SAP 025-599 -129.

Final Payment for SAP 025-599 -128 and SAP 025 -599- 129.pdf

Approve Tax & CAMA MnCCC Participation Agreement

Tyler Contract Amendment.pdf

Regular Agenda

Land Use Management Director's Report

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres from A -3 (Urban Fringe District) to R -1 (Suburban 

Residence District). Parcel 32.200.0310. Territorial Road Lake City, MN 55041. Part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 12 in Florence Township. 

CBPacket_Rigelman.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for IUP for up to Four Animal Units on a 5 Acre Parcel Zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District)

Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 horses to be kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District. Parcels 45.024.1901 

and 45.024.1100. 37533 County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw Township.  

CBPacket_Arntson.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for an Event Center and Resort Facility (Villa Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager))

Request for a Conditional Use Permit to continue the operations of an Event Center and Resort Facility permitted via IUP. The proposal includes remodeling existing structures and 

constructing additions to provide spaces for lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, and event spaces. 29847 County 2 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026. Parcels 32.160.0040 and 

32.012.0400. Blocks C, D, and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 12 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. CR (Commercial 

Recreational District).   

CBPacket_VillaMaria_2023.pdf

County Administrator's Report

Xcel Energy Letter Response

Xcel Binder.pdf

Finance Director's Report

Broadband Extension with Southeast MN Wifi LLC

Southeast Mn WiFi Extension 8.10.pdf

Goodhue County Soil & Water Conservation District

Annual Awards

Conservation Farmer of the Year.pdf

Woodland Manager Award.pdf

Extension Office Director's Report

4- H Update

Farm Family of the Year

Goodhue County Farm Family _ UMN Extension.pdf

For Your Information

2nd Quarter Financial Report

2nd Quarter 2023 Report.pdf

July 2023 Staffing Report

2023 Staffing Report.pdf

Cannon Valley Trail Grant Update

UPDATED 2023 Goodhue County Grant Approval Request -  Bridge and Bituminous Replacement Project.pdf

Project Status Report.

Project Status Report 10 Aug 23.pdf

Mighty Mississippi Clean Up Challenge Update

County Board Committee Reports

New and Old Business

ADJOURN

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

2.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/97243f72-f930-4361-b766-0f3265a60c15


 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS' PROCEEDINGS, GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
 JULY 18, 2023  
 

 
 

Page 4595

4595 

The Goodhue County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, July 18, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. in the County Board Room, 
Government Center, Red Wing, with Commissioner Majerus, Flanders, Betcher, Anderson and Greseth all present.   
 
C/Flanders asked for disclosures of interest.  There were none. 
 
1 Moved by C/Greseth, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve the June 20, 2023 County Board meeting 

minutes. 
 

2 Moved by C/Majerus, seconded by C/Anderson, and carried to approve the July 18, 2023 County Board Agenda. 
 

Administrator Arneson added #6 to the consent agenda to set a public hearing date for the Goodhue County 
Trust Fund Ordinance. 
 

3 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve the following items on the consent 
agenda: 
 

1. Approve Covered Bridge Riders Temporary On Sale Liquor License 
2. Approve New On Sale Liquor License Application 
3. Approve Agreement with Arvig for Utility Building at Kenyon Shop 
4. Approve Final CR 57 Bridge. 
5. Approve Sale of Public Works Unit on the On-Line Public Surplus Auction 
6. Approve to Set a Public Hearing for The Housing Trust Fund Ordinance. 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
Introduction of Court Services Director, Rhonda VanSchoonhoven.  Administrator Arneson introduced Rhonda 
VanSchoonhoven who was promoted to be the new Court Services Director following the retirement of Mark Jaeger.   
 
Website Request For Proposal.  Communications and Outreach specialist, Briggs Topple, presented to the board a 
recommendation from the Communications Committee to allocate Broadband ARPA funds for an RFP process for a 
new website software provider. 

 
4 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Betcher, and carried to approve the Communications Committee 

recommendation to use Broadband ARPA funds up to $60,000 for an RFP process for a new website software 
provider. 

 
CANNON VALLEY TRAIL 
Bridge and Bituminous Replacement Project.  The Cannon Valley Trail requested the board approve a resolution 
to be the local unit of government sponsor for the GMRPTC Program to fulfill the requirements of a Greater 
Minnesota Regional Parks and Trails Commission Grant Program– Bridge and Bituminous Replacement Project.   
 
5 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Betcher, and carried to approve the following resolution approving a 

Greater Minnesota Legacy Grant application to the Greater Minnesota Regional Parks and Trails Commission 
and Minnesota Department of Natural Resources for the _ Bridge and Bituminous Replacement _ project.  
 
WHEREAS, Goodhue County (Applicant) has the right and authority to sponsor a grant funding request to the 
Greater Minnesota Regional Parks and Trails Commission (GMRPTC).  
 
WHEREAS, Goodhue County (Applicant) has a right and authority to act as Legal Sponsor for the State Grant 
Application (the “Application”) and will work with the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (“DNR”), in 
developing a Grant Agreement relating to the funding which may be awarded by the GMRPTC.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Applicant certifies it has read and understands the Office of Grants 
Management Conflict of Interest Policy 08-01, will maintain an adequate Conflict of Interest Policy and monitor and 
report any actual, potential, or perceived conflicts of interest to the GMRPTC and DNR.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Applicant confirms all of the information in its Application and further 
confirms that it has no expectation of, or entitlement to, reimbursement of costs incurred prior to grant agreement 



 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS' PROCEEDINGS, GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
 JULY 18, 2023  
 

 
 

Page 4596

4596 

execution date and, if applicable, it has not entered into a written purchase agreement to acquire property described in 
its Application if grant funds are to be used for the purchase.  
 
BE IT FURTHE RESOLVED, that the Applicant has or will acquire a fee interest ownership or permanent easement 
over the land described in the Application for regional parks and regional special feature parks as applicable. The 
applicant has or will acquire a fee interest, permanent or perpetual easement or minimum twenty (20) year lease over the 
land described in the Application for regional trails or regional special feature parks, as applicable and approved, before 
the project proceeds.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Applicant agrees that it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and 
requirements as stated in the Grant Agreement with the DNR, including dedicating the park property for uses consistent 
with the grant agreement into perpetuity or for trails, committing to maintain the trails for a period of not less than 
twenty (20) years, and dedicating all land acquired under the project for uses consistent with the grant agreement into 
perpetuity.  
 
BE IT FURTHER UNDERSTOOD, that the GMRPTC will confirm at such time that it has made the award of funds 
authorizing a Grant Agreement to be developed between the DNR and the Applicant. 

 
FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Public Hearing: 61 Express - Off-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License.  Staff requested the board hold a public 
hearing and approve the proposed application for a Liquor License for 61 Express Off Sale 33971 Hwy 61 Blvd 
Frontenac, MN 55026. Approval from the Township, County Sheriff, and County Attorney has been obtained. 
License is contingent upon inspection and approval by the state’s Alcohol and Gambling Enforcement. This 
establishment is requesting a new license due to a change in ownership and would run from December 1, 2022 thru 
November 30, 2023. 
 
6 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve to open the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Flanders asked three times for public comment.  There were no comments. 
 
7 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Greseth, and carried to approve to close the public hearing. 

8 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve the application for a Liquor License for 
61 Express Off Sale 33971 Hwy 61 Blvd Frontenac, MN 55026. License is contingent upon inspection and approval by 
the state’s Alcohol and Gambling Enforcement. This establishment is requesting a new license due to a change in 
ownership and would run from December 1, 2022 thru November 30, 2023. 

 
Broadband Agreement with Southeast MN Wifi LLC.  In 2021 the Goodhue County Board had earmarked 
$1,600,000 for the expansion of Broadband service to unserved or underserved communities within Goodhue 
County.  The funds initially came from the Federal program American Rescue Plan Act and Goodhue County 
established this Broadband program to be used by established companies through the use of qualifying grants. Four 
grants have been approved for a total amount of $986,329, leaving $613,671 remaining to be distributed.    Through 
the County’s second round of opening up the grant process, Southeast MN Wifi LLC has submitted a proposal for a 
project to take place in Welch Township.  The project would serve 18 unserved passings and they are requesting 
$112,138 from the County or 48% of the total project which is $236,080. Staff is recommending approval of the 
Broadband Agreement between Goodhue County and Southeast MN Wifi LLC in the amount of $112,138. 
 
9 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Greseth, and carried to approve the Broadband Agreement between 

Goodhue County and Southeast MN Wifi LLC in the amount of $112,138. 
 
ARPA Budget Update.  The County Board has previously discussed and approved the ARPA Program and Budget 
knowing that it would require additional discussion and amendments. Staff reviewed the proposed adjustments with 
the board and recommended the board use ARPA funds instead of building contingency funds to pay for the overage 
of the Roof Top HVAV Unites and up to $280,000 related to the Government Center Master Plan Phase I 
Implementation.   
 
10 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Betcher, and carried to approve the proposed updates to the ARPA 

budget as presented and use the savings in ARPA dollars instead of using the building contingency fund. 
 



 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS' PROCEEDINGS, GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
 JULY 18, 2023  
 

 
 

Page 4597

4597 

 
LAND USE MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Updates.  Proposed amendments to Article 
10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), and Article 20 (Table of Uses) to amend definitions for Farm 
and Agricultural Operation, add a definition for Rural Tourism, remove Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agri-
Tourism and replace with Rural Tourism, amend performance standards and the Table of Uses to correlate with the 
addition of Rural Tourism 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval. 
 
11 Moved by C/Majerus, seconded by C/Anderson, and carried to approve to open the public hearing. 
 
C/Flanders asked three times for public comments.  There were none. 
 
12 Moved by C/Majerus, seconded by C/Greseth, and carried to approve to close the public hearing. 

13 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve the Planning Advisory Commission 
recommendation and  adopt the staff report into the record; accept the testimony, exhibits, and other evidence 
presented into the record; and APPROVE the amendments to Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 (Performance 
Standards), and 20 (Table of Uses). 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone).  The request, submitted by Connie Bodeker 
(Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A-2 (General Agriculture District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 
28.031.1201. TBD 338th Street Way Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 
Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request. 
 
14 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve to open the public hearing. 
 
C/Flanders asked three times for public comment.   
 
The following people spoke to the issue:  Stanley Bryczek, Mark Nelson and Ken Tennessen all opposed the issue.    
 
Bob Stalberger and Connie Bodeker supported the issue. 
 
15 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Betcher, and carried to approve to close the public hearing. 

16 Moved by C/Betcher, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve to adopt the staff report into the record; 
accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and APPROVE the 
map amendment request from Connie Bodeker (Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A2 (General Agriculture 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). 

 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Auction of Unit #0601.  It is the recommendation that the Board authorize staff to trade off unit #0601 ahead of 
receiving its replacement. 
 
C/Anderson asked if there would be a minimum reserve set. Mr. Greenwood confirmed that the minimum bid would 
be set at the amount the county would receive as a trade in. 
 
17 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Betcher, and carried to approve to authorize staff to trade off unit #0601 

ahead of receiving its replacement. 
 
Wheelage Tax Increase.  Staff recommended the Board approve increasing the Wheelage Tax from $10 per vehicle 
to $20 per vehicle. 
 
18 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Betcher, and carried to approve increasing the Wheelage Tax from $10 

per vehicle to $20 per vehicle. 
 



 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS' PROCEEDINGS, GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
 JULY 18, 2023  
 

 
 

Page 4598

4598 

MINNESOTA COUNTIES INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRUST (MCIT) 
Annual Report.  Gerd Clabaugh, MCIT Executive Director presented to the board and gave an overview of the 
annual report.  This item was for information only.  
 
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGER’S REPORT 
Personnel Committee Report.  The Personnel Committee met prior to the board meeting with the following item on 
the agenda: 
 
Job Classification Appeals. The personnel committee recommended approval of the job classification appeals as 
presented by payroll consultant, Dr. Tessia Melvin with David Drown Associates.  
 
19 Moved by C/Betcher, seconded by C/Greseth, and carried to approve the following job classification appeals as 

recommended by DDA: 
Adult Case Administrator 
Court Services Director 
Information Systems Specialist/HHS Systems Application Specialist 
Building Inspector 
Sanitarian 
Recycling Center Operator 
Public Safety Telecommunicator 
Sergeant, Sr Records Specialist  

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS:   
C/Betcher   

C/Greseth   

C/Anderson   

C/Majerus   

C/Flanders  Housing subcommittee update. 

Administrator 
Arneson 

  

 
Review and Approve the County Claims 
 
20 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve to pay the County claims in the 

amount of 01-General Revenue $827,943.55, 03-Public Works $292,525.41, 11- Human Service Fund 
$172,676.81, 12- GC Family Services Collaborative $00, 15- County Ditch 1 $00; 20- National Opioid 
Settlement Fund $00, 25- EDA $756.00, 34-Capital Equipment $203,297.39, 35-Debt Services $00, 61-Waste 
Management $33,403.55, 72-Other Agency Funds $309,754.07, 81-Settlement $23,703,702.70 in the total 
amount of $25,544,059.48. 

 
Adjourn  
 
21 Moved by C/Anderson, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve to adjourn the July 17, 2023, County 

Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 

 
SCOTT O. ARNESON 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

  
LINDA FLANDERS, CHAIR 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
  



 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS' PROCEEDINGS, GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
 JULY 18, 2023  
 

 
 

Page 4599

4599 

 
MINUTE 
 
1. Approved the June 20, 2023, board meeting minutes.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

2. Approved the county board agenda.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

3. Approved the consent agenda.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

4. Approved to allocate Broadband ARPA funds for an RFP process for a new county website.  (Motion failed 5-0) 

5. Approved the Grant Application for the Cannon Valley Trail.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

6. Approved to open the public hearing.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

7. Approved to close the public hearing.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

8. Approved the liquor license for 61 Express.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

9. Approved the Broadband Agreement with Southeast MN Wifi LLC.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

10. Approved the ARPA budget.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

11. Approved to open the public hearing.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

12. Approved to close the public hearing.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

13. Approved the County Zoning Ordinance Updates. (Motion carried 5-0) 

14. Approved to open the public hearing.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

15. Approved to close the public hearing.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

16. Approved the map amendment rezone for Connie Bodeker, Cannon Falls Township.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

17. Approved to Auction Unit #0601 from Public Works.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

18. Approved the Wheelage Tax increase.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

19. Approved the job classification appeals as recommended by DDA Consultant.  (Motion carried 5-0)  

20. Approved the county claims.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

21. Approved to adjourn the July 18, 2023 County Board Meeting.  (Motion carried 5-0) 



Rhonda VanSchoonhoven 
Court Services Director 

 
Goodhue County 

454 W 6th Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

p: (651) 267-4907 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Court Services department conducted a hiring process to backfill a vacant Probation Officer 
position. Janet Ferguson was hired as a Probation Officer effective July 24, 2023.  
 
Ms. Ferguson has worked for Goodhue County in the Court Services department since 2017 most 
recently as the Administrative Office Manager.  Both the Administrative Office Manager and 
Probation Officer positions are compensated at salary grade 112. When Ms. Ferguson transferred to 
the Probation Officer position she maintained her placement at grade 112, step 3 ($34.13, hourly). 
 
The Goodhue County Personnel Policy 5.9 Transfers states, “the anniversary date of transferred 
employees will change unless the original date is retained by the County Board.” We are requesting 
Ms. Ferguson’s anniversary date remains May 1st allowing for step progression to grade 112, step 4 
based upon satisfactory performance evaluation. 
 
We recommend that the Board approve retaining Ms. Ferguson’s anniversary date of May 1st. 
 

To: Honorable County Commissioners 

Cc: Jessica Ahlbrecht, HR Manager 

Date: Thursday, July 27, 2023 

RE: Janet Ferguson Anniversary Date 





John Smith
IT Director

Goodhue County
509 West 5th Street

Red Wing, MN 55066
p: (651) 385-3224

To: Honorable County Commissioners

Cc: Mary Priebe, HR Manager

Date: Thursday, July 27, 2023

RE: Daniel Schmidt Anniversary Date

The IT Department conducted a hiring process to backfill a vacant IT Application Support Specialist. Daniel 
Schmidt was hired as an Application Support Specialist with a start date not yet determined but no later than 
August 28, 2023.

Daniel Schmidt has worked for Goodhue County since February 22, 2022 in the IT Department as a Technical 
Support Specialist.  The new position is a lateral move with no pay grade or step increase for Mr. Schmidt.  
Because there is no official start date for the new position, it is a lateral move only to a new job tittle, and Mr. 
Schmidt is already performing much of the duties in the new position, we propose his anniversary date be left 
as February 1st.

The Goodhue County Personnel Policy 5.9 Transfers states, “the anniversary date of transferred employees 
will change unless the original date is retained by the County Board.” We are requesting Mr. Schmidt’s 
anniversary date remains February 1st allowing for regular step progression to coincide with the probationary 
period based upon continued satisfactory performance evaluation.

We recommend that the Board approve retaining Daniel Schmidt ’s anniversary date of February  1st.





Goodhue County 
Grant Form 

 
 
Grant Information 
 
Grant Award:  $31,330       
Name of Grant: 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant      
Sponsoring Agency: MN Department of Public Safety through FEMA 
Grant Period: 01/01/2021-09/30/2023 
 
Department Information 
 
Department: Emergency Management 
Primary Contact Person: Earl Merchlewitz      
Phone number: 651-267-2639 
 
Purpose: 
 Provide funds to assist emergency management agencies to implement the National 
Preparedness System (NPS) and to support the National Preparedness Goal of a 
secure and resilient nation.  The objectives include closing capability gaps that are 
identified in the state’s most recent Stakeholder Preparedness Review (SPR) and 
building or sustaining those capabilities that are identified as high priority through 
the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment process.                   
 
 
Restrictions: 
In order to receive these grant dollars, Goodhue County has to match the funds by 
100%. 
 
 
 
 

 Reimbursement  Payment up front     Match ($ or in-kind) 
 
Website Address: www.fema.gov 
CFDA # (if Federal Grant): 97.042 
Date sent to Administration: 07/21/23 
 
Board Approval Date (for office use only): ___________________ 
 



 

 
Grant Contract Agreement                                Page 1 of 2 

 
  

DPS Grant Contract Agreement Non-State (rev. September 2022) 

Minnesota Department of Public Safety (“State”) 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Division 
445 Minnesota Street, Suite 223 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2190 

Grant Program:  
2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant 
 
Grant Contract Agreement No.: 
A-EMPG-2021-GOODHUCO-026 

Grantee: 
Goodhue County 
509 West 5th Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

Grant Contract Agreement Term: 
 
Effective Date:  01/01/2021 
Expiration Date:  09/30/2023 

Grantee’s Authorized Representative: 
Goodhue County Sheriff’s Office 
ATTN: Sheriff Marty Kelly 
430 West 6th Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 
Phone:  651-267-2702 
E-mail:  marty.kelly@co.goodhue.mn.us 

Grant Contract Agreement Amount: 
Original Agreement $ 31,330.00 
Matching Requirement $ 31,330.00 

 
 

State’s Authorized Representative: 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
ATTN: Ms. Kyle Temme 
445 Minnesota Street, Suite 223 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2190 
Phone: 651-201-7420 
E-mail: kyle.temme@state.mn.us 

Federal Funding:  CFDA/ALN:  97.042 
 
FAIN: EMC-2021-EP-00011 
 
State Funding: None  
 
Special Conditions: None  

 
Under Minn. Stat. § 299A.01, Subd 2 (4) the State is empowered to enter into this grant contract agreement. 
 
Term:  The creation and validity of this grant contract agreement conforms with Minn. Stat. § 16B.98 Subdivision 
5. Effective date is the date shown above or the date the State obtains all required signatures under Minn. Stat. § 
16B.98, Subdivision 7, whichever is later.  Once this grant contract agreement is fully executed, the Grantee may 
claim reimbursement for expenditures incurred pursuant to the Payment clause of this grant contract agreement.  
Reimbursements will only be made for those expenditures made according to the terms of this grant contract 
agreement.  Expiration date is the date shown above or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, 
whichever occurs first.   
 
The Grantee, who is not a state employee will: 
Perform and accomplish such purposes and activities as specified herein and in the Grantee’s approved 2021 
Emergency Management Performance Grant Application (“Application”) which is incorporated by reference into 
this grant contract agreement and on file with the State at 445 Minnesota Street, Suite 223. St. Paul, MN 55101-
2190.  The Grantee shall also comply with all requirements referenced in the 2021 Emergency Management 
Performance Grant Guidelines and Application which includes the Terms and Conditions and Grant Program 
Guidelines (https://app.dps.mn.gov/EGrants), which are incorporated by reference into this grant contract 
agreement.   
 
Budget Revisions:  The breakdown of costs of the Grantee’s Budget is contained in Exhibit A, which is attached 
and incorporated into this grant contract agreement.  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program 
Guidelines, the Grantee will submit a written change request for any substitution of budget items or any deviation 
and in accordance with the Grant Program Guidelines.  Requests must be approved prior to any expenditure by 
the Grantee. 
 
Matching Requirements:  (If applicable.) As stated in the Grantee’s Application, the Grantee certifies that the 

https://app.dps.mn.gov/EGrants


 

 
Grant Contract Agreement                                Page 2 of 2 

 
  

DPS Grant Contract Agreement Non-State (rev. September 2022) 

matching requirement will be met by the Grantee. 
 
Payment:  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program Guidance, the State will promptly pay the 

Grantee after the Grantee presents an invoice for the services actually performed and the State's Authorized 
Representative accepts the invoiced services and in accordance with the Grant Program Guidelines.  Payment 
will not be made if the Grantee has not satisfied reporting requirements.   

 
Certification Regarding Lobbying:  (If applicable.)  Grantees receiving federal funds over $100,000.00 must 
complete and return the Certification Regarding Lobbying form provided by the State to the Grantee. 
 
 
1.  ENCUMBRANCE VERIFICATION    3.  STATE AGENCY 

Individual certifies that funds have been encumbered as  
required by Minn. Stat. § 16A.15.           Signed: _____________________________________________ 

                              (with delegated authority) 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Title: ______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________  Date: ______________________________________________ 
 
Grant Contract Agreement No./ P.O. No.   A-EMPG-2021-GOODHUCO-026  /  P.O. No. 3000077467 

Project No.:N/A 
 
 
2.  GRANTEE 
The Grantee certifies that the appropriate person(s)  
have executed the grant contract agreement on behalf of the Grantee  
as required by applicable articles, bylaws, resolutions, or ordinances. 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________ 
 
Print Name: __________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signed: ______________________________________________ 
 
Print Name: __________________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signed: ______________________________________________ 
 
Print Name: __________________________________________ 

Distribution:   DPS/FAS 
Title: ________________________________________________          Grantee 

        State’s Authorized Representative  
Date: ________________________________________________ 
 



Page 1 of 106/26/2023

2021 (EMPG) Emergency Management Performance Grant

Budget Summary (Report)

Organization: 
Goodhue County

EXHIBIT A

A-EMPG-2021-GOODHUCO-026

Budget

Budget Category Award Match

Planning

EM Operating Expenses $2,580.00 $2,580.00

Total $2,580.00 $2,580.00

Organization

EM Director Salary & Benefits $28,750.00 $28,750.00

Total $28,750.00 $28,750.00

Total $31,330.00 $31,330.00

Allocation $31,330.00 $31,330.00

Balance $0.00 $0.00



Goodhue County 
Grant Form 

 
 
Grant Information 
 
Grant Award:  $36,253      
Name of Grant: 2022 Emergency Management Performance Grant      
Sponsoring Agency: MN Department of Public Safety through FEMA 
Grant Period: 01/01/2022-12/31/2023 
 
Department Information 
 
Department: Emergency Management 
Primary Contact Person: Earl Merchlewitz      
Phone number: 651-267-2639 
 
Purpose: 
 Provide funds to assist emergency management agencies to implement the National 
Preparedness System (NPS) and to support the National Preparedness Goal of a 
secure and resilient nation.  The objectives include closing capability gaps that are 
identified in the state’s most recent Stakeholder Preparedness Review (SPR) and 
building or sustaining those capabilities that are identified as high priority through 
the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment process.                   
 
 
Restrictions: 
In order to receive these grant dollars, Goodhue County has to match the funds by 
100%. 
 
 
 
 

 Reimbursement  Payment up front     Match ($ or in-kind) 
 
Website Address: www.fema.gov 
CFDA # (if Federal Grant): 97.042 
Date sent to Administration: 07/21/23 
 
Board Approval Date (for office use only): ___________________ 
 



 

 
Grant Contract Agreement                                Page 1 of 2 

 
  

DPS Grant Contract Agreement Non-State (rev. September 2022) 

Minnesota Department of Public Safety (“State”) 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Division 
445 Minnesota Street, Suite 223 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2190 

Grant Program:  
2022 Emergency Management Performance Grant 
 
Grant Contract Agreement No.: 
A-EMPG-2022-GOODHUCO-027 

Grantee: 
Goodhue County 
509 West 5th Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

Grant Contract Agreement Term: 
 
Effective Date:  01/01/2022 
Expiration Date:  12/31/2023 

Grantee’s Authorized Representative: 
Goodhue County Sheriff’s Office 
ATTN: Sheriff Marty Kelly 
430 West 6th Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 
Phone:  651-267-2702 
E-mail:  marty.kelly@co.goodhue.mn.us 

Grant Contract Agreement Amount: 
Original Agreement $ 36,253.00 
Matching Requirement $ 36,253.00 

 
 

State’s Authorized Representative: 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
ATTN: Ms. Kyle Temme 
445 Minnesota Street, Suite 223 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2190 
Phone: 651-201-7420 
E-mail: kyle.temme@state.mn.us 

Federal Funding:  CFDA/ALN:  97.042 
 
FAIN: EMC-2022-EP-00007 
 
State Funding: None  
 
Special Conditions: None  

 
Under Minn. Stat. § 299A.01, Subd 2 (4) the State is empowered to enter into this grant contract agreement. 
 
Term:  The creation and validity of this grant contract agreement conforms with Minn. Stat. §16B.98 Subdivision 
5. Effective date is the date shown above or the date the State obtains all required signatures under Minn. Stat. 
§16B.98, Subdivision 7, whichever is later.  Once this grant contract agreement is fully executed, the Grantee may 
claim reimbursement for expenditures incurred pursuant to the Payment clause of this grant contract agreement.  
Reimbursements will only be made for those expenditures made according to the terms of this grant contract 
agreement.  Expiration date is the date shown above or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, 
whichever occurs first.   
 
The Grantee, who is not a state employee will: 
Perform and accomplish such purposes and activities as specified herein and in the Grantee’s approved 2022 
Emergency Management Performance Grant Application (“Application”) which is incorporated by reference into 
this grant contract agreement and on file with the State at 445 Minnesota Street, Suite 223. St. Paul, MN 55101-
2190.  The Grantee shall also comply with all requirements referenced in the 2022 Emergency Management 
Performance Grant Guidelines and Application which includes the Terms and Conditions and Grant Program 
Guidelines (https://app.dps.mn.gov/EGrants), which are incorporated by reference into this grant contract 
agreement.   
 
Budget Revisions:  The breakdown of costs of the Grantee’s Budget is contained in Exhibit A, which is attached 
and incorporated into this grant contract agreement.  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program 
Guidelines, the Grantee will submit a written change request for any substitution of budget items or any deviation 
and in accordance with the Grant Program Guidelines.  Requests must be approved prior to any expenditure by 
the Grantee. 
 
 

https://app.dps.mn.gov/EGrants


 

 
Grant Contract Agreement                                Page 2 of 2 

 
  

DPS Grant Contract Agreement Non-State (rev. September 2022) 

Matching Requirements:  (If applicable.) As stated in the Grantee’s Application, the Grantee certifies that the 
matching requirement will be met by the Grantee. 
 
Payment:  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program Guidance, the State will promptly pay the 

Grantee after the Grantee presents an invoice for the services actually performed and the State's Authorized 
Representative accepts the invoiced services and in accordance with the Grant Program Guidelines.  Payment 
will not be made if the Grantee has not satisfied reporting requirements.   

 
Certification Regarding Lobbying:  (If applicable.)  Grantees receiving federal funds over $100,000.00 must 
complete and return the Certification Regarding Lobbying form provided by the State to the Grantee. 
 
 
1.  ENCUMBRANCE VERIFICATION    3.  STATE AGENCY 

Individual certifies that funds have been encumbered as  
required by Minn. Stat. § 16A.15.           Signed: _____________________________________________ 

                              (with delegated authority) 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Title: ______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________  Date: ______________________________________________ 
 
Grant Contract Agreement No./ P.O. No.   A-EMPG-2022-GOODHUCO-027  /  P.O. No. 3000084195 

Project No.:N/A 
 
 
2.  GRANTEE 
The Grantee certifies that the appropriate person(s)  
have executed the grant contract agreement on behalf of the Grantee  
as required by applicable articles, bylaws, resolutions, or ordinances. 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________ 
 
Print Name: __________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signed: ______________________________________________ 
 
Print Name: __________________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signed: ______________________________________________ 
 
Print Name: __________________________________________ 

Distribution:   DPS/FAS 
Title: ________________________________________________          Grantee 

        State’s Authorized Representative  
Date: ________________________________________________ 
 



Page 1 of 106/29/2023

2022 (EMPG) Emergency Management Performance Grant

Budget Summary (Report)

Organization: 
Goodhue County

EXHIBIT A

A-EMPG-2022-GOODHUCO-027

Budget

Budget Category Award Match

Planning

EM Operating Expenses $4,753.00 $4,753.00

Total $4,753.00 $4,753.00

Organization

EM Director Salary & Benefits $31,500.00 $31,500.00

Total $31,500.00 $31,500.00

Total $36,253.00 $36,253.00

Allocation $36,253.00 $36,253.00

Balance $0.00 $0.00



"To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents" 

Jess L. Greenwood, P.E. 
Public Works Director/County Engineer 

Goodhue County Public Works Department 

2140 Pioneer Road 
Red Wing, MN 55066 
 Office (651) 385.3025 

TO: Honorable County Commissioners 
Scott Arneson, County Administrator 

FROM:  Jess L. Greenwood, P.E. – Public Works Director 

RE: 10 August 2023 County Board Meeting - CONSENT AGENDA 
Final Contract C.P. 025-011-001 CSAH 11 Bridge Replacement 

Date: 3 August 2023 

Summary 
It is requested that the County Board approve the attached resolution to accept and approve final 
payment for the CSAH 11 Bridge Project, C.P. 025-011-001. 

Background 
This contract provided for the replacement of the CSAH 11 bridge structure: 

Road #  Old Bridge # New Bridge # 
CSAH 11 L0463 25K07 

The contractor for this project was Fitzgerald Excavating & Trucking, from Goodhue, MN.  The 
original contract amount was $148,569.00 and the final contract amount is $148,955.00.  Final payment 
to the contractor is $7,447.75.  Completed contract is 100.2% of the original contract amount, due to 
additional erosion control needed for the conditions of the project site. 

Alternatives 
 None.

Recommendations 
It is the recommendation of staff that the County Board approves the attached resolution and finalize 
this contract. 













 
State of Minnesota 
County of Goodhue 

 

Flanders 
Anderson 
Majerus 
Betcher 
Greseth 

  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
 

No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 

I, Scott Arneson, duly appointed, qualified and County Administrator 
of the County of Goodhue, State of Minnesota, do hereby certify that I have 
compared the foregoing copy of a resolution with the original minutes of the 
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners, Goodhue County, 
Minnesota at their session held on the 10th day of August 2023, now on file 
in my office, and have found the same to be a true and correct copy thereof. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal at Red Wing, Minnesota, on this 
10th day of August 2023. 

 
____________________________ 
Scott Arneson 
County Administrator 

 
  

    
 

B O A R D  O F C O U N T Y  C O M M I S S I O N E R S  
 GO O D H U E  C O U N T Y ,  M I N N E S O T A  

 
Date: 10 August 2023 

 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, Contract No. 11001, C.P. No. 025-011-001; replace CSAH 11 
Bridge L0463 with Bridge 25K07, which has in all things been completed, 
and the County Board being fully advised in the premises; and, 
 
WHEREAS, documentation for the project has been finalized, and final 
payment to the contractor, Fitzgerald Excavating & Trucking, is $7,447.75. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Goodhue County Board of 
Commissioners does hereby accept said completed project for and in behalf 
of the County of Goodhue and authorize final payment as specified herein.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



"To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents" 

Jess L. Greenwood, P.E. 
Public Works Director/County Engineer 

Goodhue County Public Works Department 

2140 Pioneer Road 
Red Wing, MN 55066 
 Office (651) 385.3025 

TO: Honorable County Commissioners 
Scott Arneson, County Administrator 

FROM:  Jess L. Greenwood, P.E. – Public Works Director 

RE: 10 August 2023 County Board Meeting - CONSENT AGENDA 
Final Contract for S.A.P. 025-599-128 and S.A.P. 025-599-129 Bridge Replacements 

Date: 3 August 2023 

Summary 
It is requested that the County Board approve the attached resolution to accept and approve final 
payments for the construction of Bridge 25J99 in Wanamingo Township, S.A.P. 025-599-128, and the 
construction of Bridge 25K00 in Kenyon Township, S.A.P. 025-599-129. 

Background 
This contract provided for the replacement of two new structures: 

S.A.P #  Old Bridge # New Bridge # 
025-599-128 L0463 25J99 
025-599-129 N/A 25K00 

The contractor for this project was Fitzgerald Excavating & Trucking, from Goodhue, MN.  The 
original contract amount was $398,029.40, the revised contract amount is $486,029.40, and the final 
contract amount is $487,330.40.  Final payment to the contractor is $16,787.22 for S.A.P. 025-599-128 
and $7,579.30 for S.A.P. 025-599-129, for a total payment of $24,366.52.  Completed contract is 100.3% 
of the revised contract amount, due to additional erosion control needed for the conditions of the 
project site. 

Alternatives 
 None.

Recommendations 
It is the recommendation of staff that the County Board approves the attached resolution and finalize 
this contract. 















 
State of Minnesota 
County of Goodhue 

 

Flanders 
Anderson 
Majerus 
Betcher 
Greseth 

  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
 

No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 

I, Scott Arneson, duly appointed, qualified and County Administrator 
of the County of Goodhue, State of Minnesota, do hereby certify that I have 
compared the foregoing copy of a resolution with the original minutes of the 
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners, Goodhue County, 
Minnesota at their session held on the 10th day of August 2023, now on file 
in my office, and have found the same to be a true and correct copy thereof. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal at Red Wing, Minnesota, on this 
10th day of August 2023. 

 
____________________________ 
Scott Arneson 
County Administrator 

 
  

    
 

B O A R D  O F C O U N T Y  C O M M I S S I O N E R S  
 GO O D H U E  C O U N T Y ,  M I N N E S O T A  

 
Date: 10 August 2023 

 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, Contract No. 99128, S.A.P. No. 025-599-128, construct Bridge 
25J99 in Wanamingo Township, and S.A.P. 025-599-129, construct Bridge 
25K00 in Kenyon Township, which have in all things been completed, and 
the County Board being fully advised in the premises; and, 
 
WHEREAS, documentation for the contract has been finalized, and final 
payment to the contractor, Fitzgerald Excavating & Trucking, is $24,366.52 
in total ($16,787.22 for S.A.P. 025-599-128 and $7,579.30 for S.A.P. 025-599-
129). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Goodhue County Board of 
Commissioners does hereby accept said completed project for and in behalf 
of the County of Goodhue and authorize final payment as specified herein.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
State of Minnesota 
County of Goodhue 

 

Flanders 
Anderson 
Majerus 
Betcher 
Greseth 

  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
  ___ 
 

No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 
No ___ 

I, Scott Arneson, duly appointed, qualified and County Administ  
of the County of Goodhue, State of Minnesota, do hereby certify that I  
compared the foregoing copy of a resolution with the original minutes o   
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners, Goodhue Co  
Minnesota at their session held on the 10th day of August 2023, now o   
in my office, and have found the same to be a true and correct copy the  
 

Witness my hand and official seal at Red Wing, Minnesota, on  
10th day of August 2023. 

 
____________________________ 
Scott Arneson 
County Administrator 

 
  

    
 

 
 



GOODHUE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LINDA FLANDERS 
1st District 

1121 West 4th Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

BRAD ANDERSON 
2nd District 

10679 375TH St. Way 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009 

TODD GRESETH 
3rd District 

46804 Hwy 57 Blvd.  
Wanamingo, MN 55983 

JASON MAJERUS 
4th District 

39111 County 2 Blvd. 
Goodhue, MN  55027 

SUSAN BETCHER 
5th District 

30133 Lakeview Ave. 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

Brian J. Anderson 
Goodhue County Auditor/Treasurer 

 Goodhue County Finance & Taxpayer Services  

Brian.anderson@co.goodhue.mn.us 
509 W. Fifth St. 

Red Wing, MN 55066 
 

 

TO: County Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Brian J. Anderson, Goodhue County Auditor/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: Tax & CAMA MnCCC Participation Agreement 

DATE: August 10, 2023 
 
 

 

Background 
In May of 2021, the County Board was presented with a Tax and CAMA Software Proposal. The 
County Board approved the proposal of purchasing Tyler iasWorld software for both Tax and 
CAMA administration. The conversion project kicked off in April of 2023 and will be complete 
with a full system go live by the end of the year. 
 
Discussion 
In November of 2021, Minnesota Counties Computer Cooperative (MnCCC) entered into a five 
year master service agreement with Tyler Technologies. Goodhue County partners with 
MnCCC on our current legacy tax system. Staff feels that they have benefited from this 
collaboration. Participation in the MnCCC user groups is key to staying up to date with changes 
coming and having a voice as to how those changes are implemented within the software.  
 
Additional changes to the contract include unlimited updates for new legislation as well as the 
inclusion of three Smart Files. Smart Files are online forms which allow customers to complete 
paperwork from any location and at any time of the day. An example of a potential Smart File 
would be a Homestead application. 
 
If approved, Tyler Technologies would close the County’s current agreement and convert the 
County to the MnCCC agreement. The MnCCC agreement does cost more as it includes 
unlimited legislative updates as well as the three Smart Files. The increase for implementation 
costs is $18,555 and the annual fees will increase by $7,831. These costs are already accounted 
for in the 2024 budget. 
 



Software Implementation & Annual Maintenance Costs 

Goodhue County’s Current Tyler Technologies Agreement 
 

 
 
iasWorld Tyler Software included in the SaaS fees above are: 

o iasWorld CAMA 
o iasWorld Tax Billing & Collection 
o iasWorld Public Access 
o iasWorld Assessment Administration 
o iasWorld Delinquent Tax 

 
Proposed MnCCC Tyler Technologies Agreement  
 

 
 
Enterprise Assessment & Tax Software included in the SaaS Fees above are: 

o Enterprise Assessment (Formerly known as iasWorld CAMA) 
o Enterprise Tax (Formerly known as iasWorld Tax Billing & Collection 
o Delinquent Tax 
o Property Access (Formerly known as Public Access) 
o Smart File (3 filings – Homestead application, Address change, Email opt in/out) 

 
Recommendation 
Staff is recommending approval of the MnCCC participation agreement with Tyler 
Technologies Enterprise Assessment & Tax Software. 

 
Please find attached a copy of master services agreement along with the amendment. 

iasWorld CAMA and Tax Billing & Collections Costs

Annual SaaS Fees ‐ Initial Term 87,938$    

Implementation Services 310,500$ 

Estimated Travel Expenses 23,400$    

Enterprise Assessment & Tax Costs

Annual SaaS Fees ‐ Initial Term 85,919$    

Implementation Services 329,055$ 

Estimated Travel Expenses 23,400$    

Annual ‐ Unlimited Legislative Changes 9,850$      



1 

AMENDMENT 

This amendment (“Amendment”) is effective as of the date of signature of the last party to sign as 
indicated below (“Amendment Effective Date”), by and between Tyler Technologies, Inc. with offices at 
One Tyler Drive, Yarmouth, Maine 04096 (“Tyler”) and the Minnesota Counties Computer Cooperative, 
(“Client”). 

WHEREAS, Tyler and the Client are parties to a Master Services Agreement dated November 30, 2021 
(“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, Tyler and Client desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as provided herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained, Tyler and the Client 
agree as follows: 

1. The cost summary set forth in Attachment 1 to the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety
and replaced with the cost summary set forth in Attachment 1 to this Amendment.

2. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Agreement.

3. Except as expressly indicated in this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



   
2 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth 
below. 
 
Tyler Technologies, Inc.     Minnesota Counties Computer Cooperative 
 
 
By:       By:       
 
Name:         Name:         
 
Title:         Title:         
 
Date:       Date:       
 
 
 

By:      
  

Name:         
 

Title:        
  

Date:      
  

T. Pat Paquin

MnCCC Executive Board Chair

08/17/2022

Lisa C. Meredith

Executive Director

08/17/2022

Gus Tenhundfeld

Inside Sales Manager

August 17, 2022



Attachment 1 

   
3 

ATTACHMENT 1  
August 2022 Amendment 

 

 
Solution Pricing – Pricing will be determined based on the relative size of the jurisdiction as 
determined by the County’s parcel count. For determination of cost, the jurisdiction’s parcel count 
category will be established as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 
 

Parcel Range Category 
0 15,000 A 

15,001 30,000 B 
30,001 100,000 C 

100,001 >100,001 D 
 
Fully Integrated Enterprise Assessment & Tax Solution 
 

Category SaaS Fee Service Fee Travel Expenses 
A $52,813 $220,200 $18,200 
B $69,367 $273,360 $20,800 
C $85,919 $329,055 $23,400 
D Custom Pricing 

 
Included Software 

• Enterprise Assessment (CAMA) 
• Enterprise Tax 
• Delinquent Tax 
• Property Access 
• SmartFile 

 
Assumptions 

• Pricing is per jurisdiction and assumes a single installation 
• 12-month implementation, 30% resourcing 
• Minnesota standard configurations, no modifications included in base setup 
• Client business processed may change to match Minnesota standard 
• Mini Fit/Gap to understand County’s unique processes (20 days = 1 team week) 
• Travel billed separately as incurred, estimates included in pricing 
• Out of Scope: modifications, custom reports, custom integrations, workflows 
• 3 basic existing MN SmartFile filings included per client 
• 2 months post-live support 
• 30 days of training (2 weeks, partial team) 
• 20 days of go-live support (1 week, whole team)  

  Minnesota Counties Computer Cooperative 
  Tax and CAMA Software  

Appraisal & Tax  

 



Attachment 1 

   
4 

Enterprise Assessment (CAMA) only Solution 
 

Category SaaS Fee Service Fee Travel Expenses 
A $31,688 $151,890 $18,200 
B $41,625 $188,352 $20,800 
C $51,551 $226,585 $23,400 
D Custom Pricing 

 
Included Software 

Enterprise Assessment (CAMA) only 
• Enterprise Assessment (CAMA) 
• Property Access 
• SmartFile 

 
Enterprise Tax only Solution 
 

Category SaaS Fee Service Fee Travel Expenses 
A $36,245 $159,390 $18,200 
B $47,612 $198,352 $20,800 
C $58,965 $239,085 $23,400 
D Custom Pricing 

 
Enterprise Tax only 
• Enterprise Tax 
• Delinquent Tax 
• Property Access 
• SmartFile (2 filings only) 

 
Assumptions 

• Pricing is per jurisdiction and assumes a single installation 
• 12-month implementation, 30% resourcing 
• Minnesota standard configurations, no modifications included in base setup 
• Client business processed may change to match Minnesota standard 
• Mini Fit/Gap to understand County’s unique processes (20 days = 1 team week) 
• Travel billed separately as incurred, estimates included in pricing 
• Out of Scope: modifications, custom reports, custom integrations, workflows 
• 3 basic existing MN SmartFile filings included per client for Enterprise Assessment and 2 

basic existing MN SmartFile filings included per client for Enterprise Tax 
• 2 months post-live support 
• 30 days of training (2 weeks, partial team) 
• 20 days of go-live support (1 week, whole team) 

  



Attachment 1 

   
5 

Unlimited Legislative Changes Uplift 
Premium uplift to elect unlimited legislative changes, cost per county is incremental to the annual 
SaaS fee: 
 

Category CAMA+Tax CAMA Only Tax Only 
A $6,050 $3,650 $3,650 
B $7,950 $4,750 $4,750 
C $9,850 $5,950 $5,950 
D Custom Pricing 

 
Additional Optional Services 
The following additional optional services can be selected by participating Counties.  

• Custom Integration with Tax Application - $15,000 per Interface and $5,000 per county to 
setup/train 

• Custom Integration with CAMA Application - $15,000 per Interface and $5,000 per county to 
setup/train 

• Custom Integration with a GL Application - $15,000 per Interface and $5,000 per county to 
setup/train 

• Custom Integration with Permitting Application - $10,000 per Interface and $5,000 per 
county to setup/train 

• Custom Integration with Recorder of Deeds Application - $10,000 per Interface and $5,000 
per county to setup/train 

• Online payment processing with Property Access - $25,000 per vendor 
 
The following optional additional services will need to be priced and scoped out based on the effort 
requested: 

• Integration with Marshall and Swift – Price to be scoped by county (license and services cost) 
• Custom Workflows – Priced per Scope of workflow (varies by complexity) 
• Custom SmartFile filing - Priced per Scope of the filing (varies by complexity) 
• Modification to baseline MN reports (outside of legislative changes) – Price to be scoped per 

change requested 
• New reports (outside of legislative changes) - Price to be scoped per change requested 

Additional Optional Software 
 
Tyler Cashiering 

Category SaaS Fee Service Fee Travel Expenses 
A $10,500 $29,500 $0* 
B $14,250 $29,500 $0* 
C $18,280 $29,500 $0* 
D Custom Pricing 

  



Attachment 1 

   
6 

 
Field Mobile 

Category SaaS Fee Service Fee Travel Expenses 
A $7,600 $32,200 $0* 
B $8,500 $39,905 $0* 
C $9,690 $52,210 $0* 
D Custom Pricing 

 
Assessment Connect/Open Assessment 

Category SaaS Fee Service Fee Travel Expenses 
A $12,080 $18,400 $0* 
B $15,870 $18,400 $0* 
C $19,655 $18,400 $0* 
D Custom Pricing 

 
Inquiry & Appeals Add-On 

Category SaaS Fee Service Fee Travel Expenses 
A $7,596 $10,000 $0* 
B $9,978 $10,000 $0* 
C $12,357 $10,000 $0* 
D Custom Pricing 

 
 

Note: References to iasWorld have been replaced with Enterprise Assessment & Tax to reflect our rebranding 
as noted below.  
 
Same Tyler Products, New Names 
Since 1999 Tyler has been building the best array of software solutions for the public sector. If you have spoken 
with one of our representatives, attended a demonstration, or browsed our website before 2022, you may notice 
some changes in our products. Many of Tyler’s products are getting new, simplified names. These updated names 
will be functional in nature, making it easier to understand what our products do. 
 
Our products are changing in name only. There will be no change in product functionality, support, or services. 
You can continue to expect the best with Tyler. We are excited to share this journey into the next evolution of 
Tyler Technologies. 
 
For details, please visit https://www.tylertech.com/about-us/who-we-are/product-name-update-faq 
 
 

 

https://www.tylertech.com/about-us/who-we-are/product-name-update-faq






















































































































































































































 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  County Board 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 10, 2023 
Report date: July 21, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone)  
Request, submitted by Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) 
to rezone 1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: Territorial Road Lake City, MN 55041 
Parcel: 32.200.0310 
Legal Description: Part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 12 in Florence 
Township 
Township: Florence Township approved the proposed split and rezoning request in 2022.  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Project Review (Rezone) 
July 17, 2023, Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Overview:  
The Applicant (Mitchell Rigelman) has submitted a “change of zone” request for 1.22 acres of parcel 
32.200.0310 in Florence Township. The A-3 (Urban Fringe District) zoned parcel currently contains 
approximately 53.42 acres with the 1.22 acres proposed to be rezoned to R-1 (Suburban Residence 
District) separated from the majority of the parcel by parcels 32.200.0320 and 32.200.0330.  

The current A-3 zoning classification does not allow the 1.22 acres to be split from the 53.42-acre 
parcel due to the 35-acre minimum lot size requirement. Properties in the A-3 District are not 
considered buildable for any structures if they are under 35 acres. If rezoned to R-1, the 1.22 acres 
could be split from the remaining 52 acres and would be considered an eligible building site.  

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
 The subject property consists of a single, non-contiguous parcel comprising 53.42 acres. Most of 

the parcel consists of tillable land with wooded bluff areas to the west. The 1.22 acres in question 
are vacant and not currently used for agriculture purposes.  

 Adjacent properties are zoned A-3, A-2 (General Agriculture District) in section 36 of Florence 
Township, and R-1 (Suburban Residence District) as part of the Golf View Ridge First Addition. 
All land adjacent to the 1.22 acres to be rezoned is currently zoned A-3.  

 The subject property is surrounded by medium-density residential development and the Lake 
City Golf Course. Land in the city of Lake City is less than ½ mile to the west.  

 The property is not located within a Historic Preservation District. It is not anticipated that any 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

historic amenities will be negatively impacted as a result of the proposed rezone.  

 No portions of the property are designated Shoreland or Floodplain.  
 
Proposed Uses: 
 If rezoned, the 1.22-acre parcel would be eligible for one dwelling site due to R-1 District’s 1-acre 

minimum lot size provisions.  

Accessibility: 
 The Right-of-Way authority for Territorial Road is Florence Township. Future driveway access 

onto Territorial Road would need to be approved by the Township prior to construction.    

Planning Information: 
 The R-1 District is intended to provide a district that defines and protects areas suitable for low to 

medium-density residential development as the principal use of the land and to allow related 
facilities desirable for a residential environment. It is also intended that the district allows varying 
densities of development in accordance with the ability to provide water and sewer facilities. 

 The 1.22 acres to be rezoned is currently vacant land. There are no registered Feedlots within 
1,000 feet or 96% OFFSET odor annoyance-free distance.  

 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows:  

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Burkhardt Sandy Loam 0-6% 1.1 100% 
 

Farmland of Statewide Importance 

 
Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan: 

 The proposed rezone appears compatible with the goals and objectives of the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan:  

“Support the establishment of rural residences to provide rural living opportunities in the 
unincorporated areas of Goodhue County” 

“Work with Townships to evaluate and designate suitable residential sites that minimize 
conflicts with agricultural and rural uses” 

PAC Recommendation: 
The Planning Advisory Commission recommends the County Board of Commissioners 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

APPROVE the map amendment request from Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F 
Moechnig Et Al (Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban 
Residence District). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 

 

 



Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 July 17, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 
PM by Chair Chris Buck at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 
Roll Call 
Commissioners Present: Tom Gale (arrived at 6:25 PM), Richard Miller, Darwin Fox, Howard 
Stenerson, Richard Nystuen, Chris Buck, and Todd Greseth 
Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke  
Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning 
Assistant William Lenzen, and Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

 

1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Nystuen to approve the 
meeting agenda. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Stenerson; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the 
previous month’s meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 6:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.    
 

4. Public Hearings  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request, submitted by Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al 
(Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence 
District). Parcel 32.200.0310. Territorial Road Lake City, MN 55041. Part of the SE ¼ of the 
NW ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 12 in Florence Township.  
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson commented that this is a strange situation. He questioned whether 
there were any details on the Randall properties that were split off. He wondered whether 
these properties were changed to R-1 as part of that split.    
 
Pierret stated these parcels are still zoned A-3. 



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 July 17, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner Stenerson asked how the Randall parcels could be 0.8 acres and 2.8 acres and 
we can’t split this one into 1.2 acres.    
 
Pierret stated she did not know how the parcels ended up in this configuration and why the 
Randall parcel has a dwelling. It could have been done several years ago before common 
zoning rules were adopted.   
 
Commissioner Greseth asked if the Randall properties have any buildable sites.   
 
Pierret stated no. One of the parcels has a dwelling on it. The dwelling may be on the property 
line between the two parcels. Neither of the parcels owned by the Randalls are involved with 
this request. This is for the small 1.2 acres owned by the Moechnig Trust.  There are no building 
sites on the Randall properties because of the 35-acre minimum lot size.   
 
Commissioner Stenerson asked how many houses are already built in that section. 
 
Pierret stated that she was unsure because they don’t keep track of how many houses are in the 
R-1 and A-3 districts.  
   
Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 
 
No one spoke for or against the request.   
 
3After Chair Buck called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 
 
Pierret said there are currently 19 dwellings in the A-3 zoned portions of this section and there 
are 14 dwellings in the R-1 zoned parts of the section. Part of this section is also taken up by the 
city of Lake City. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson asked if staff knows how far away Lake City public utilities are from 
this area. There are a lot of properties on real sandy soil and there are a lot of septics out there.   
 
Pierret stated that the location of Lake City utilities is unknown by staff at this time. 
 
Hanni stated staff reviewed the nearby septics and have data on all but one system. The 
systems that have information on file with the County are all compliant.    
 
4It was moved by Commissioner Nystuen and seconded by Commissioner Miller 
for the Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 July 17, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request 
from Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) to rezone 
1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). 
 
Motion carried 5:1 (Commissioner Stenerson dissented) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for IUP for up to Four Animal Units on a 5 Acre Parcel 
Zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District) 
Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 horses to be 
kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District. Parcels 45.024.1901 and 45.024.1100. 37533 
County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 
in Warsaw Township.   
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked why this is a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) rather than a 
variance. Under the rules, it looks like 3 animal units are automatically approved. Wouldn’t 
the Applicant just need a variance to get the fourth, fifth, and sixth animals? One place in the 
report states 6 horses and one place states 4 horses.      

Pierret said that the Table of Uses dictates that this needs to be an Interim Use. The six horses 
referenced were the maximum he could have because he owns a little over six acres. It is one 
animal unit per acre on a minimum one-acre parcel. He is only asking for 4 horses. If this 
request is approved, he would be limited to 4 horses. If he wants 5 or 6 he would have to come 
back and amend the IUP.           

Commissioner Nystuen asked why this is not being rezoned to A-2 since there are A-2 parcels 
on either side.   

Pierret stated rezoning this would mean more public hearings and more expense for the 
Applicant. The Table of Uses was amended in 2019 for these types of situations. A rezoning is 
not necessary because we already have a means with the Interim Use Permit for him to get 
these 4 horses.   

Commissioner Nystuen asked if this will open it up for more people wanting to do this type of 
request. 

Pierret said yes.  And that is what the ordinance was written for.   

Commissioner Fox said a subcommittee put this together and recommended the IUP process so 
people could have animals without having to go through the re-zoning process.       

Commissioner Miller said it is an IUP and that has restrictions.   

Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request.  



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

Project Review per Article 3, Section 2, Subd. 5-10: 
Subd. 5  A.   The names and addresses of the petitioner or petitioners and their signatures to the 

petition.  See application  
B.  Survey information: See application 
C.  The current and proposed district:  A3 to R1 
D.  The current use and the proposed use of the land.  The 1.22 acres to be rezoned 

are currently vacant and are not used for agricultural purposes.  
E. The reason for the requested change of zoning district. In order to create a 

building site and split 1.22 acres of land from 53 acres in the A3 District 
where there is a 35 acre minimum lot size. The split cannot be approved 
unless the 1.22 acres is rezoned to R-1 where there is a 1 acre minimum lot 
size.    

F.  A copy of the soil map showing the soils types within the proposed boundary and the 
surrounding area. A soils map for the site has been prepared. 
G.  Prime Farmland Rating of the soil types in F. 
 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows: 

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Burkhardt Sandy Loam 0-6% 1.1 100% 
 

Farmland of Statewide Importance 

 
H.  A statement of how the requested change is compatible with the Goodhue County Comprehensive 
Plan including but not limited to the following: 

1.  The environmental impacts of the proposed use of land on the: 
a.    Groundwater 
b. Natural plant and animal communities 
c.    Existing trees and vegetation 
d. Bluffland stability 
e.    Shoreland stability 

The 1.22 acres to be rezoned does not contain any sensitive 
enfironmental features such as bluffs or shoreland. Septic systems 
must be permitted with the County Environmental Health 
Department and adhere to applicable rules and regulations for siting 
and design. A septic professional will need to analyze the site to 
prepare a permit.  

2.  The compatibility with surrounding land uses 
Surrounding land uses include medium-density residential, the 
Lake City Golf Course, wooded blufflands, tilled cropland, and land 
within the City of Lake City.  

3. The physical and visual impacts on any scenic or historic amenities within or 
surrounding the proposed parcel. 
It is not anticipated that any visual or historic amenities will be 
negatively impacted as a result of the proposed rezone.  

Subd. 6 The housing density of the affected Section 
 Section 31 TWP 112 R12 is an A-3 zoned section with some areas zoned R-1. 

Dwelling density in the A-3 District is limited to one dwelling per 35 acres. 
There are currently 19 dwellings in the A-3 zoned portions of the section, only 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

one of which is on a parcel 35 acres or more. There are 14 dwellings in the R-1 
portion of the section which is part of the Golf View Ridge First Addition plat.   

Subd. 7 The impact on any surrounding agricultural uses 
The property is not currently used for agricultural purposes. There are no 
feedlots within 1,000 feet or 96% OFFSET odor annoyance free rating of the 
property. There is land used for cropland in the vicinity however the rezoning 
would not affect any land currently used for agriculture.  

Subd. 8 The impact on the existing transportation infrastructure 
The Applicant’s property is accessed off of Territorial Road (asphalt surface). 
Any new access points would need to be approved by the road authority, 
Florence Township.  

Subd. 9 The impact on surrounding zoning districts 
 The 1.22 acres and all surrounding land is zoned A-3 Urban Fringe.  
Subd. 10 The cumulative effect and compatibility of the requested zoning change on the affected 

Township and any cities located within 2 miles of the proposed parcel. 
Rezoning the subject parcel to R1 does not appear to have negative cumulative 
effects on the immediate surrounding area or the City of Lake City. The 
surrounding area is used primarily for medium-density residential among 
some cropland and the Lake City Golf Course.  

Subd. 11. Additional information as may be requested by the Planning Commission or zoning staff. 







Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

N623B Burkhardt sandy loam, 0 to 6 
percent slopes

1.1 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 1.1 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 
class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the 
landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the 
characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 
observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. 
Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without 
including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made 
up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor 
components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the 
map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called 
noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a 
particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties 
and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different 
management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They 
generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the 
scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas 
are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a 
given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit 
descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor 
components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not 
mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it 
was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 
miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the 
usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate 
pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or 
landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The 
delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, 
onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous 
areas.

Custom Soil Resource Report

11



















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Goodhue County Board 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 10, 2023 
Report date: July 21, 2023 
 
CONSIDER: Request for IUP for up to Four Animal Units on a 5 Acre Parcel Zoned R-1 
(Suburban Residential District) 
Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 horses to be 
kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Gary Arntson (owner) 
Address of zoning request: 37533 County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018 
Parcel(s): 45.024.1901 and 45.024.1100 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw 
Township 
Township Information: Warsaw Township signed acknowledgment of the proposal on June 12, 2023, 
with no additional comments 
Zoning District: R-1 (Suburban Residence District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
July 17, 2023, Planning Commission Draft Meeting Minutes 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Goodhue County amended Article 20 of the Zoning Ordinance “Table of Uses” in 2019 to add a 
provision so that properties zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District) could have livestock animals 
such as chickens, horses, sheep, etc. on parcels 1 acre or greater as an Interim Use. Animals are 
limited to one animal unit per acre up to 9.9 animal units because property owners must register as a 
Feedlot at 10 animal units. Feedlots are not a permitted use in the R-1 District. Previously, a 
maximum of 3 horses had been allowed in the R-1 District on parcels 5 acres or larger with a 
Conditional or Interim Use Permit.  

The Applicant desires to have up to 4 horses on their property currently zoned R-1. The Applicant 
owns two contiguous parcels containing approximately 6.4 acres therefore up to 6 horses could be 
kept on the properties.  

Project Summary: 
Property/Building Information: 
 The subject property consists of two contiguous parcels comprising approximately 6.4 acres.  

 The property is bordered by R-1 zoned parcels to the west and north across County 9 BLVD. Land 
zoned A-2 (General Agriculture District) is located on all sides of the property. Property owners in 
A-2 Districts are permitted to have up to 9.9 animal units without a permit and may apply for 
Feedlot permits to exceed that number.  

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 

 The Applicant obtained a building permit for an accessory building intended to be used for the 
horses in October 2022. The Zoning Administrator approved the permit subject to the condition 
that no animals be kept in the building until an IUP is approved for animals in an R-1 zone.    

 The property contains a single-family dwelling and the new accessory building. There are two 
existing fenced-in areas for the horses, one north of the dwelling and one south of the dwelling. A 
fenced riding ring is proposed to be installed on the property if the IUP is approved.   

 Manure will be handled appropriately by storing it on-site in an area that will not be a nuisance 
and regularly having the manure picked up to be used as fertilizer.  

 There is the potential for some odor to be caused by having animals on site. This is not 
uncharacteristic of other agricultural uses in the area. There are 4 properties with registered 
Feedlots within ½ mile of the property. The nearest dwellings are approximately 100 feet from the 
Applicant’s west property line. These dwellings are also zoned R-1 and are buffered from the area 
proposed for horses by a wooded bluff.   

PAC Findings of Fact: 
 

1. The proposal to keep 4 horses on the property does not appear injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it 
substantially diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The surrounding 
area is primarily agricultural land where animal husbandry and feedlots are common.  

2. The proposal to have 4 horses is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly development 
or improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. The proposal 
does not appear incompatible with adjacent agricultural land uses. The Applicant cannot register 
as a Feedlot in the R-1 District. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposal.  

4. The facility has ample room to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the 
use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning standards.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Odor will be addressed by 
keeping pen areas clean and removing manure regularly from the area.  

 
PAC Recommendation: 
The  Planning Advisory Commission recommends that the County Board 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

APPROVE the request submitted by Gary Arntson (owner) to keep no more than 4 horses on 
parcels zoned R-1 Suburban Residence District. 
Subject to the following condition: 

1. This IUP shall expire upon a change in ownership of the property.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2023 Aerial photo using EagleViewer Imagery. View from the south looking at new building.  
 

New Accessory Building 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 July 17, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request 
from Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) to rezone 
1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). 
 
Motion carried 5:1 (Commissioner Stenerson dissented) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for IUP for up to Four Animal Units on a 5 Acre Parcel 
Zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District) 
Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 horses to be 
kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District. Parcels 45.024.1901 and 45.024.1100. 37533 
County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 
in Warsaw Township.   
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked why this is a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) rather than a 
variance. Under the rules, it looks like 3 animal units are automatically approved. Wouldn’t 
the Applicant just need a variance to get the fourth, fifth, and sixth animals? One place in the 
report states 6 horses and one place states 4 horses.      

Pierret said that the Table of Uses dictates that this needs to be an Interim Use. The six horses 
referenced were the maximum he could have because he owns a little over six acres. It is one 
animal unit per acre on a minimum one-acre parcel. He is only asking for 4 horses. If this 
request is approved, he would be limited to 4 horses. If he wants 5 or 6 he would have to come 
back and amend the IUP.           

Commissioner Nystuen asked why this is not being rezoned to A-2 since there are A-2 parcels 
on either side.   

Pierret stated rezoning this would mean more public hearings and more expense for the 
Applicant. The Table of Uses was amended in 2019 for these types of situations. A rezoning is 
not necessary because we already have a means with the Interim Use Permit for him to get 
these 4 horses.   

Commissioner Nystuen asked if this will open it up for more people wanting to do this type of 
request. 

Pierret said yes.  And that is what the ordinance was written for.   

Commissioner Fox said a subcommittee put this together and recommended the IUP process so 
people could have animals without having to go through the re-zoning process.       

Commissioner Miller said it is an IUP and that has restrictions.   

Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request.  



Page 4 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 July 17, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

5After Chair Buck called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Miller and seconded by Commissioner Nystuen to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 
 
Commissioner Stenerson said he prefers to see this in an agricultural zone, but there is enough 
land and it fits the rules.   
 
6It was moved by Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the finding of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Gary 
Arntson (owner) to keep no more than 4 horses on parcels zoned R-1 Suburban Residence 
District. Subject to the following condition: 
1. This IUP shall expire upon a change in ownership of the property. 

Motion carried 6:0 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for an Event Center and Resort Facility (Villa 
Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager)) 
Request for a Conditional Use Permit to continue the operations of an Event Center and Resort 
Facility permitted via IUP. The proposal includes remodeling existing structures and 
constructing additions to provide spaces for lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, and event 
spaces. 29847 County 2 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026. Parcels 32.160.0040 and 32.012.0400. 
Blocks C, D, and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of 
Section 12 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. CR (Commercial Recreational District).    
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
 
Chair Buck asked if the three or four full-service bars will be used only for events or if they will 
be open all the time. 
 
John Rupp (Applicant) said the ballroom (the old chapel) has a service bar on the back of it. If 
there is an event and the host/hostess wants to have beverage service at that bar they can. 
That bar would only be open for events. On the lower level, there is a social space that is 
intended to be used before the event starts, and before people are seated for dinner, they could 
go there and use the bar on that level. The use will vary from event to event. Neither one of 
these bars is open other than associated with a particular event and both would be associated 
with the same event. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson questioned the type of use proposed. The report states there will be a 
hotel open 24 hours a day and it also references an event center. Will the property be used for 



















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 7 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  County Board 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 10, 2023 
Report date: August 3, 2023 
 
CONSIDER: Request for CUP for an Event Center and Resort Facility (Villa Maria 
Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager)) 
Request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to establish an Event Center and Resort Facility. The 
proposal includes remodeling existing structures and constructing additions to provide spaces for 
lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, and event spaces.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Villa Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager) 
Address of zoning request: 29847 County 2 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026 
PID(s): 32.160.0040 and 32.012.0400 
Abbreviated Legal: Blocks C, D, and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the SE ¼ of the 
SW ¼ of Section 12 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township 
Zoning District: CR (Commercial Recreational District) 
Township: Florence Township approved a CUP for the proposed use in July 2022.  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
July 17, 2023 Planning Commission DRAFT meeting minutes 
Staff Correspondence with Applicant Regarding Permits 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
Goodhue County Assembly Controls Ordinance 
 
Summary/Background:  
The Applicant, Villa Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager) is requesting a Conditional 
Use Permit to establish an event center and resort facility on the “Villa Maria” property in Frontenac. 

In January 2023, the Goodhue County Board approved an Interim Use Permit for Villa Maria with 
several conditions to be met by June 23, 2023. The IUP expired 6 months from the date of approval 
if the conditions were not met by June 23rd. The Applicant has met all IUP conditions and is required 
to obtain Conditional Use Permit approval from the Planning Commission and County Board to 
continue operations after the 6 month expiration date. Most of the project details have not changed 
since January 2023.  

During the past 6 months, staff has worked with the Applicant to allow activities in the main Marian 
Hall building. The Applicant has submitted various documents for Environmental Health and 
Building Official review. Several of the conditions from the January 2023 IUP will remain the same 
such as no hosting events in portions of buildings that are not approved by the Building Official, 
submitting appropriate septic documentation and contracts, and maintaining appropriate licenses 
with the State of Minnesota for food, alcohol, and lodging.  

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Property Information: 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 7 

 The subject property consists of 2 parcels comprising approximately 63 acres. Both parcels are 
currently zoned CR (Commercial Recreational District) after being rezoned in 2018 from A2 
(General Agriculture District).  

 Surrounding land uses include undeveloped prairie, forest, and water resources (Frontenac State 
Park) to the east, south, and west as well as medium-density residential to the north (Frontenac).  

 Access to the site is located off of County 2 BLVD (asphalt surface) on the east side of the 
property. The access is within a half-mile of US HWY 61. 

Facilities: 
“Marian Hall” (AREA – A): 
 The 4-story former dormitory will be remodeled into a boutique hotel with a total of 32 public 

units and 2 staff units. Each hotel unit has replaced 3 to 4 existing smaller dorm rooms on floors 
one, two, and three. The fourth-floor attic space will be converted into two larger hotel units. 
Each hotel unit will have a private bathroom, kitchenette, fireplace, and washer/dryer.  

o The January 2023 floorplans have been amended to add another hotel unit on the 
main floor. This unit replaces an office/conference room area shown on the original 
drawings.  

 The former chapel area on the main level will be used as an event space with a lounge area and 
bar attached capable of holding approximately 300 occupants. A deck is proposed to be 
constructed west of the lounge area.  

 The second and third levels will contain hotel units with a conference room/library on each floor.  

 The lower level will be remodeled to include retail space and event space for approximately 125 
occupants. There is an existing commercial kitchen on the lower level that will be used for events 
held in this building. 

o The basement level retail space has been reduced to include only one retail gift shop. 
The second retail space is now proposed to be used as storage space.  

o During the July Planning Commission meeting the Applicant indicated the event 
space may be used as a public restaurant in the future. In order to avoid needing to 
return for a CUP amendment should the restaurant open, this has been added to the 
request for County Board consideration.   

 The basement-level gymnasium will be used as additional event space for approximately 175 
occupants. A hallway from the basement level connects to an indoor pool building that will be 
available for guests. The Applicant has proposed various structural additions to the pool building.   

“Glengarda Cottage” (AREA – B): 
 The Glengarda cottage is a residential-style structure located on the east side of County 2 BLVD. 

The Applicant has remodeled and upgraded the existing structure for use as a short-term rental 
unit and use as a “bride’s cottage” during wedding events. 
 

“Starwood Lodge” and “Wildwood Cottage” (AREA – C): 
 The Starwood Lodge is proposed to be remodeled to include a second “bride’s cottage” and a 

“groom’s cottage”. Both areas will also be used as short-term rentals. 
  

 The Wildwood Cottage is proposed to be remodeled to be used as a second “groom’s cottage” and 
will be used as a short-term rental.  

  
“Ursuline Hall” (AREA – D): 
 Ursuline Hall is proposed to be used as an event hall with structure additions to include 

additional seating areas, a lounge area, a bar, and a commercial kitchen to be used for a public 
restaurant. The building can currently hold about 100 occupants and the proposed additions 
would increase the maximum capacity to approximately 325 occupants.  

“Woodhaven Lodge” and Barn (AREA – E): 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 7 

 The existing Woodhaven Lodge will be remodeled for use as another event space. There is an 
existing commercial kitchen that will be used for events. Additions are proposed to add 
additional event space and an ADA-accessible ramp to the building. 

 The existing barn north of the Woodhaven Lodge will be remodeled for use as a social space with 
a bar and mezzanine level. The capacity is proposed to be about 100 occupants.   

Outdoor Spaces: 
 Outdoor space on the property is also proposed to be used for various events. The area outside 

the Woodhaven Lodge and Barn may be used for various activities including softball, volleyball, 
etc. An event tent may be used outside of the Woodhaven Lodge for ceremonies and events. The 
area outside Ursuline Hall will be used as an outdoor terrace, garden area, and outdoor lawn 
games. An event tent or pavilion may be used outside Ursuline Hall for outdoor weddings and 
events.  

 The property will contain various nature trails for guest use and the Applicant has begun work to 
restore the White Oak Savannah Forest in cooperation with the Minnesota DNR. There is a small 
vineyard on the property that may be expanded and various landscaping efforts will be ongoing. 

Front Lawn: 
 The Applicant desires to someday host a summer music festival on the front lawn area of the 

property. It is anticipated these events would exceed 500 attendees and be subject to the 
County’s Assembly Controls Ordinance requirement for a permit from the County Board. The 
Assembly Controls Ordinance includes an evaluation of public safety measures, sanitary facilities, 
food and alcohol provisions, parking, noise, and traffic.  

Future Plans (AREAS – F & G): 
 The Applicant has included various notes on proposals including additional hotel space, 

condominium platting, a spa complex, and more. The County Board is not being asked to 
approve these uses as detailed plans have not been submitted. These uses will require an IUP 
amendment if pursued.  

Employees: 
 The Applicant anticipates the need for approximately 80 full and part-time employees. Two staff 

sleeping units have been proposed on the lower level of Marian Hall.  
 
Hours of Operation: 
 Hours of operation for the hotel are proposed to be year-round 24 hours per day. Events would 

take place mainly on weekends but may occur any day of the week ending no later than midnight.  
 
Lighting: 
 The Marian Hall building will be subtly illuminated along with “dark sky” landscape lighting and 

downlit path and road lighting will be installed around the property.  
 
Traffic and Parking: 
 The site has historically experienced higher traffic flows associated with previously held retreat 

events and conferences. The volume of traffic is anticipated to increase given the Applicant’s 
proposed scale of events and the potential for multiple venues to be active in addition to the hotel 
area. Traffic will primarily approach the property from the south on County 2 BLVD which 
directly connects to US HWY 61. Existing transportation infrastructure appears capable of 
supporting the proposed use. Guests will be encouraged to access the site from the south to limit 
traffic through residential areas in Old Frontenac and Frontenac Station.  
 

 The driveway has numerous locations for delivery traffic and guests to turn around to aid with 
traffic circulation on site. The driveway (asphalt) is approximately 20 feet wide allowing vehicles 
to bypass each other to keep traffic flowing off of County 2 BLVD. Adequate emergency vehicle 
access is available to service the facility. 

 Several parking areas exist on site. There are 70 parking stalls (paved) immediately east of 
Marian Hall near the entrance. There are 46 stalls available west of Marian Hall in the location of 
the old tennis courts. The Applicant intends to expand this parking area to provide additional 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 7 

parking for event guests.  

According to GCZO Article 11, Section 16 minimum off-street parking provisions for “Hotels” 
shall be 1 parking space for each 2 guest rooms (32 rooms), plus 1 additional space for every 3 
employees (80 employees). A minimum of 47 spaces are required for the hotel and employees. 
Mixed occupancy buildings require at least 2 spaces per dwelling unit. The short-term 
rentals/bride’s/groom’s cottages will require at least 10 spaces. Dance halls, assembly halls 
without fixed seats, and similar uses require one space per each 4 people allowed in the 
maximum occupancy load as established by the Fire Marshall. These calculations will be 
performed during the building permit and inspection processes for the various buildings. 
Occupancy numbers will be recalculated for any building additions or changes of use. 
Additional parking stalls may be required on-site as buildings are expanded and uses changed 
(i.e. changing Ursuline Hall to a public restaurant). There is ample room on the property to 
accommodate additional parking spaces.  

 Traffic and parking associated with events exceeding 500 guests would be reviewed on an 
individual basis through the Goodhue County Assembly Controls Ordinance licensing process. It 
is anticipated that off-site parking would be utilized for some larger events and a shuttle service 
would be provided for guests.  

Utilities: 
 The Applicant has been working with a professional septic contractor to assess the existing septic 

system. It is anticipated SSTS upgrades will be needed in the future. The SSTS may also require 
the review and approval of appropriate permits by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
(MPCA) in the future. The Applicant has provided County staff various information from their 
contractor as required by the January IUP. The County Sanitarian has reviewed this information 
and has prepared an operating permit with several conditions.  
 

 Solid waste disposal services will be provided locally. Any hazardous materials or fluids 
generated shall be properly disposed of. 

 All wells will need to be tested and results submitted to and approved by the Minnesota 
Department of Health according to public lodging rules and regulations before commencing 
operations.  

Signage: 
 The Applicant is proposing to install one sign near the property’s main entrance. Directional 

signage will also be added for property navigation.  
 
Safety and Security Measures: 
 A new security system will be installed with comprehensive grounds and building video 

surveillance allowing the site to be monitored 24 / 7 remotely. 

 The proposed renovations to Marian Hall are considered a Change of Occupancy and current 
Building Code provisions must be met due to this change.  

 The Applicant has indicated plans for a fire suppression system are forthcoming and 
has submitted construction drawings noting this addition. The Building Official will 
review these plans upon submittal to issue appropriate permits.   

 Until a Certificate of Occupancy is approved by the Building Official for the Marian Hall building, 
all events must be held outdoors, within other structures on the property that have not been 
structurally altered or on the main level of the Marian Hall building as allowed by the Building 
Official in May 2023. This area of Marian Hall is depicted in Exhibit A attached to this report.   

Landscaping/Drainage: 
 Some grading will be necessary to enlarge the parking lot in the location of the existing tennis 

courts and to establish walking trails on the property. The property is located within an 
environmentally sensitive area therefore any proposed grading/excavation must be reviewed and 
approved by the Zoning Administrator and the Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation District. 
The Minnesota DNR should also review plans where applicable. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 7 

 The Applicant has proposed to create multiple pond areas, including a pond on State of 
Minnesota property across County 2 BLVD. Excavation and grading plans for these ponds must 
be reviewed and approved by the State of Minnesota, Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation 
District, and Zoning Administrator before beginning work.  

Dust/Noise/Odor/Fumes: 
 No nuisance dust, odor, or fumes are anticipated to be generated with the proposal. Noise 

generated during events is planned to be confined generally within the event venues to minimize 
impacts to neighboring properties. The property is heavily wooded and surrounded on 3 sides by 
Frontenac State Park which naturally buffers potential noise impacts to adjacent property 
owners. The nearest adjacent residence (Cris and Molly Hofschulte) is directly to the north across 
Winona Street.  

 
Food & Liquor Provisions: 
 There are currently two commercial kitchens on-site (Marian Hall and Woodhaven Lodge) which 

will be upgraded as needed/required and used for events. Outside caterers may be used with 
appropriate licensure to begin operations. A commercial kitchen may be added to the Ursuline 
Hall to service events and a proposed restaurant.  

 Full-service bars will be added on various floors in Marian Hall, within Woodhaven Lodge, the 
Barn, and Ursuline Hall.  

 All required federal, state, and local licensing, and other regulatory requirements must be 
followed for the bars, kitchens, and service areas. Verification of these licenses should be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator before beginning operations. 

Information Received After PAC Meeting: 

 After the PAC meeting, staff reached out to the Applicant to confirm whether the Applicant 
wanted to add use of the lower level dining area as a public restaurant to the CUP request for 
County Board consideration. On July 20, 2023 Mr. Rupp responded to staff via email indicating 
he would like to add use of the lower level dining area as a public restaurant to the request. 
Included in this email was a statement by the Applicant that he did not intend on installing the 
sprinkler system as required by the Building Official and instead intends to appeal this 
determination after receiving building permit approval. This statement indicated to staff that the 
construction drawings received in May 2023 were submitted under false pretenses with false 
statements. The Building Official cannot issue a building permit with the knowledge that portions 
of the requirements will intentionally not be followed nor does staff recommend that a building 
permit be issued until any objections are appealed to the State Department of Labor and Industry 
(DOLI). For this reason, staff has prepared the Planning Commission’s original recommendation 
of approval with added conditions regarding building permit issuance.  

 
PAC Findings of Fact: 
 

1. The proposed Event Center and Resort Facility do not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment 
of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially 
diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The property has historically been 
used for higher intensity uses such as retreats and conferences which are comparable to the 
Applicant’s proposal without producing conflicts with existing residential uses in the area.  

2. The Event Center and Resort Facility are not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. 
The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
and most operations will be confined within the existing structures. The majority of the property 
shares a border with Frontenac State Park which should not be negatively impacted by the 
proposed uses. The uses appear compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate access roads and 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be installed to accommodate the 
proposed use. Staff has received appropriate information for septic systems. The Applianct will 
need to verify all wells meet MPCA standards. Construction drawings for the fire suppression 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 6 of 7 

system must be submitted to the Building Official for review and the system installed prior to the 
Marian Hall building opening beyond the first floor event space. 

4. The submitted plans identify means and space to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading 
space to serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking 
requirements.  

5. The Event Center and Resort Facility are not anticipated to produce offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
or vibration. The distance of the site from existing nearby residences, use of indoor activity areas, 
and established vegetative buffers appear sufficient to control noise so that it will not constitute a 
nuisance. Furthermore, the Applicant’s lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such 
a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

 
PAC Recommendation: 
The Planning Advisory Commission recommends the County Board 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

APPROVE the request from Villa Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager) for a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to establish an Event Center and Resort Facility including remodeling 
existing structures and constructing various building additions to provide spaces for lodging, 
cottages, on-site restaurants, and event spaces.  
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted outdoors, within buildings that have not been structurally 
altered, or in the main level event space of Marian Hall as shown in Exhibit A according to 
submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP 
until a Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the remainder of Marian Hall. Any future uses or 
structures not specified within this CUP application shall require an amended CUP 
application and another public hearing should be held by the Goodhue County Planning 
Advisory Commission;  

2. All event activities shall end no later than midnight; 

3. On-street parking and loading/off-loading shall be prohibited; 

4. Events exceeding 500 people shall obtain required permits per the Goodhue County 
Assembly Controls Ordinance; 

5. Applicant shall obtain building permit approvals for proposed remodeling and additions from 
the Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to beginning construction; 

6. Applicant shall maintain a current Goodhue County septic system operating permit including 
abiding by all conditions within the operating permit or obtain a State Disposal System 
permit with the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.  

7. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including Article 30 CR, Commercial 
Recreational District; 

8. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations including food, beverage, and lodging licenses from the Minnesota Department of 
Health. Verification of these licenses shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator prior to 
hosting any events and upon request from LUM staff; and 

9. Applicant shall submit a Land Alteration Permit and associated grading/excavation plans for 
all projects disturbing 10,000 square feet or more of ground area. No grading or excavation 
shall take place without first obtaining a Land Alteration Permit from the Zoning 
Administrator and any associated permits from the Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation 
District and Minnesota DNR. Projects disturbing one acre or more of area shall obtain an 
NPDES permit from the MPCA. A copy of any NPDES permits shall be submitted to the 
Zoning Administrator prior to beginning work.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 7 of 7 

 
Due to the Applicant’s comments received after the Planning Advisory Commission meeting, staff is 
recommending adding the below conditions to the Board’s motion to ensure compliance with the 
Building Code.  

 
10.  A building permit will not be issued until staff receives an approval letter from   

the State Fire Marshall for the fire suppression system.  

11. A Certificate of Occupancy for the Marian Hall building will not be issued until a 
sprinkler system is installed and passes inspection(s) or the Department of 
Labor and Industry has issued a formal decision on an appeal to the sprinkler 
requirement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 















spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight



From: John R. Rupp
To: Pierret, Samantha
Subject: RE: Villa Restaurant Space
Date: Thursday, July 20, 2023 8:03:01 AM

External Email - Use caution opening links or attachments!
Good Morning – Please see my comments below
 
From: Pierret, Samantha <samantha.pierret@co.goodhue.mn.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 3:40 PM
To: John R. Rupp 
Subject: Villa Restaurant Space
 
Hi John,
At Monday’s meeting, the Commission was asking about the lower-level event/dining space and you
indicated it may open at a public restaurant in the future. To avoid having to return for a Conditional
Use Permit amendment if the space opens as a restaurant, would you like staff to add that to the
report for approval by the County Board?
 
Yes
 
As I mentioned at the meeting, the Board is approving the detailed plans on paper that I have
received so any changes like opening a public restaurant space where one was not indicated in the
plans would need an amended permit in the future.
 
Understood – so please add to staff report.
 
Please make sure the report includes the staff testimony that the sprinkler system was required
because of the fact that there is an assembly space of 300 or more.  There is no such space.   My
position remains that the sprinkler system cannot be legally demanded.
I have submitted plans with the sprinkler system in order to get a building permit that has been
denied me literally for years.  I reserve the right to appeal the sprinkler requirement, and will after I
receive my permit.  If I lose the appeal the system will be installed.
  
The County Board will make the final decision on the Conditional Use Permit at their Thursday

August 10th meeting. It will be held at 9 AM at the Goodhue County Fairgrounds in Zumbrota. 44279
County 6 BLVD Zumbrota, MN 55992.
 
 
 

Samantha Pierret, AICP
Goodhue County
Planner/Zoning Administrator
651-385-3103
 

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight































Possible 
Restaurant Space







































GOODHUE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LINDA FLANDERS 
1st District 

1121 W 4th St. 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

BRAD ANDERSON 
2nd District 

10679 375TH St. Way 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009 

TODD GRESETH 
3rd District 

46804 Hwy 57 Blvd 
Wanamingo, MN 55992 

JASON MAJERUS 
4th District 

39111 Co. 2 Blvd 
Goodhue, MN 55027 

SUSAN BETCHER 
5th District 

30133 Lakeview Ave 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

   
                                                                                        
 

Goodhue County  
   

509 W. Fifth St. 
  Red Wing, MN 55066 

 Office (651) 385.3001 
To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Scott Arneson, County Administrator 

Date: 08/10/2023 

Re: Xcel Energy Letter 

 
 
 On July 12th, 2023 Goodhue County received a letter from Xcel Energy requesting consultation 

on the Prairie Island Nuclear Generation Plant’s (PINGP) operating license renewal. In response to this 

request an email to Goodhue County Commissioners and Department Heads was sent out to ask for 

points of concern and issues they would like addressed within a response letter. What was issued by 

the aforementioned group is included in the letter below.  

 It is the recommendation of staff to approve the letter as drafted below. However, 

Commissioners are able to revise as deemed necessary.  

  



GOODHUE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LINDA FLANDERS 
1st District 

1121 W 4th St. 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

BRAD ANDERSON 
2nd District 

10679 375TH St. Way 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009 

TODD GRESETH 
3rd District 

46804 Hwy 57 Blvd 
Wanamingo, MN 55992 

JASON MAJERUS 
4th District 

39111 Co. 2 Blvd 
Goodhue, MN 55027 

SUSAN BETCHER 
5th District 

30133 Lakeview Ave 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

   
                                                                                        
 

   
509 W. Fifth St. 

  Red Wing, MN 55066 
  (651) 385.3001 

 
August 10th, 2023 
 
Thomas Conboy, Site Vice President 
Xcel Energy 
Prairie Island Nuclear Generating Plant 
Administrative Building 
1717 Wakonade Dr. 
Welch, MN 55089 
 
SUBJECT: Response to Xcel Consultation Letter 
 
Mr. Conboy,  
 
The Board of Commissioners appreciates your letter dated July 12th, 2023 and it’s request for 
consultation on the Prairie Island Nuclear Generation Plant (PINGP) extending its operating licensure. 
In addition to our consultation, we’d request, if not having been done already, for this same 
opportunity to be afforded to the Prairie Island Indian Community (PIIC). We applaud the recent 
decision to increase the yearly payments to the PIIC and hope additional consultation on this process 
follows suit. Granted the operating plant acts as an immediate neighbor, we’d hope their consultation is 
seen as a key facet to this process. 
 
As mentioned in your letter an extension of the license would result in the construction of additional 
spent fuel storage pads. We’d request additional precautions established for new and current spent fuel 
storage and the site they reside on. Ensuring current and additional built storage pad infrastructure is 
safe, is critical. Due to the plant’s proximity to the Mighty Mississippi River and natural resources, a 
failure in any infrastructure would prove dire for all forms of wildlife and our communities. Ideally all 
spent fuel, both current and future, would reside within dry caskets for the duration of its stay on the 
storage pads. However, it is our hope to see an established procedure to move these storage containers 
out of Goodhue County altogether and into another secure facility overtime. With the on-going debate 
over the use of the Yucca Mountain repository, we’d hope Xcel could utilize their lobbying prowess in 
identifying and developing a different site to move spent fuel towards in a timelier manner.  
 
PINGP has engaged in numerous safety precautions for the public and its own employees. However, 
with the recent tritium incident and NUE on May 27th, 2023, it is clear additional precautions are 
required to further secure the site, our constituents, and PINGP employees. The County would prefer to 
see an on-going inspection of plant infrastructure for potential faults to prevent future accidents. While 
we applaud the exploration of a change in technology used in the spent fuel storage systems – the 
County believes it crucial that current equipment be held to the same standards as new equipment.  



 

 

 
While Goodhue County hopes to see the accepted extension of the PINGP operating license, we know 
the PINGP will not run forever. PINGP provides an extraordinary tax base for our local communities 
who will be hindered by a closing plant. To protect and bolster our local communities far after PING 
has left us, the County would like an opportunity to discuss the creation of an economic and housing 
development fund to be used before and during this inevitable transition phase. Please contact me or 
County Administrator Arneson to schedule a meeting. With this fund local governments are able to 
invest directly into areas of our communities which will be hardest hit by a faltering tax base. As Xcel 
prepares for a year’s long license renewal process, we are sure they understand the need for long-term 
planning and organizing. Establishing this fund sooner, rather than later, will allow for proper use of 
the decade-long planning to be conducted by all parties in keeping our communities flourishing. 
 
As one of the County’s largest and best equipped employers – we thank Xcel Energy for choosing to 
continue calling Goodhue County home. Employees of the PINGP are our neighbors, friends, and help 
us every day. We only wish to see the continued success of the PINGP. Through the renewal of its 
license the PINGP will continue to provide high paying job for hundreds of Goodhue County residents, 
provide a much-needed tax base, and help our local communities continue prospering. Again, we thank 
you for the opportunity to consult on this process and look forward to continue our longstanding 
partnership.  
 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
 
 
Linda Flanders 
Goodhue County Board Chair 
 
Cc:  Goodhue County Board of Commissioners 

Scott Arneson, County Administrator 
Ross Lexvold, Xcel Energy 

 Britta Bergland, Merjent, Inc.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









GOODHUE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LINDA FLANDERS 
1st District 

1121 West 4th Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

BRAD ANDERSON 
2nd District 

10679 375TH St. Way 
Cannon Falls, MN 55009 

TODD GRESETH 
3rd District 

46804 Hwy 57 Blvd.  
Wanamingo, MN 55983 

JASON MAJERUS 
4th District 

39111 County 2 Blvd. 
Goodhue, MN  55027 

SUSAN BETCHER 
5th District 

30133 Lakeview Ave. 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

                                                                                     Brian J. Anderson 
  Goodhue County Auditor/Treasurer 

Goodhue County Finance & Taxpayer Services     

Brian.anderson@co.goodhue.mn.us 
509 W. Fifth St. 

  Red Wing, MN 55066 
 Phone (651) 385-3032 

 
 
TO:  County Board of Commissioners   

FROM: Brian J. Anderson, Goodhue County Auditor/Treasurer    

SUBJECT: Broadband Extension with Southeast MN Wifi LLC   

DATE:  August 10, 2023  

 
 
Background:  
On July 18th, 2023 the Goodhue County Board approved a Broadband Agreement with Southeast MN Wifi.  
The County agreed to provide $112,138 to Southeast MN WiFi so they could provide broadband service 
to  18  passings,  including  12  homes,  at  a  cost  of  $6,230  per  passing  per  County  grant.   At  this  time 
Southeast MN Wifi has been in contact with an additional seven residents that have expressed interest in 
broadband service.   Therefore, Southeast MN Wifi  is  requesting an additional $62,545  from Goodhue 
County for an extension for their recently approved project.    
 
Discussion:  
Southeast MN WiFi has been building high 
speed broadband networks since 2017 and 
serves  hundreds  of  households  and 
businesses.    This proposed project would 
serve  seven  residents  along  155th  Ave. 
Way.   The  amount being  requested  from 
Goodhue County  is an additional $62,545 
for a total project contribution of $174,683 
(48.37%).   This  is approximately the same 
cost per passing  for  residential homes  as 
the  initial  agreement.    Should  the  Board 
approve this amount, the ARPA Broadband 
Fund Balance will be at 378,988.     
 
Recommendation: 
Staff is recommending approval by the County Board for the Broadband Extension requested by Southeast 
MN Wifi LLC resulting in an additional amount of $62,545. 
 

   
 



The Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District is very proud to announce Paul and Chris 

Kalass as 2023’s Conservation Farmer of the Year.    This award seems way overdue for Paul who’s been 

farming his whole life and worked‐full time as a conservation technician at the Goodhue SWCD for 26 

years.   Paul was the face of conservation in Goodhue County from 1981 until he retired in 2007.    He 

helped landowners put in endless miles of waterways, terraces, and contour buffers during his time at 

the SWCD.  Paul not only used his knowledge and experience in conservation to help the landowners of 

the County, he also trained and mentored the next generation of conservation technicians at the SWCD.  

The Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation District would not be where it is today without the tireless 

effort he put forth every day. By rights, we should probably call this award the “Paul Kalass Conservation 

Award”!   

Paul took the valuable things he learned from working with countless landowners and implemented it in 

his own farming operation.  Over the years he has passed down that priceless knowledge to his son Chris 

who farms with him today.   Both Chris and Paul have farms in Minneola township outside of Zumbrota 

and have implemented everything from waterways to dams to most recently planting green into cover 

crops.   Paul has devoted a large portion of his life to conserving our natural resources and has instilled 

his values in his son Chris, who will in turn pass them down to future generations to come.  This ongoing 

devotion to bettering the land is what makes the Kalass’s so well‐deserved of this year’s conservation 

farmer award in Goodhue county.   



The Goodhue SWCD presents a Woodland Manager award each year to a landowner who has 

implemented sound forestry stewardship practices on their land. This year’s award goes to 

Andy Lejcher for work on his property in Roscoe TWP near Pine Island.  In 2012 Andy purchased 

30 acres of woods with big ideas in mind. In 2014 he had nearly 100 trees logged from the 

acreage to help generate new timber growth and start controlling the box elders and buckthorn 

on the parcel. Since then the Lecher’s have acquired 70 adjacent acres of marginal cropland and 

wooded acres. These additional acres have expanded Andy’s forestry stewardship mindset to 

new areas and opportunities. Andy, and friends, have clear cut 4 acres of boxelders and 

buckthorn as part of a restoration plan developed by the Mn DNR. Andy also enrolled 10 acres 

into a CRP program which focuses on developing wildlife corridors by planting more wooded 

areas. In total, the Letcher’s have planted over 3,500 trees of native variety species over the 

past 10 years! 

Andy has learned from many friends and professionals in the forestry industry which helped 

with the forest stand improvement; he says, “The more I listen, the more I learn!”  

It is this dedication and focus of future timber production and stewardship makes Andy Lejcher 

deserving of the 2023 Goodhue SWCD Woodland Manager of the Year Award. 



�����������	
����������������	����������

����	������





 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FY 2023 
2nd Quarter 

 Financial Report 
 



 
 

Table of Contents 
 
Revenues…………………………………………………………………    1 
 
Revenues by type, comparing current year budget vs. actuals and current year vs. prior year 
actuals.  Includes explanations for significant variances. 
 
Expenses…………………………………………………………………    2 
 
Expenses by type, comparing current year budget vs. actuals and current year vs. prior year 
actuals.  Includes explanations for significant variances. 
 
Fund Balance…………………………………………………………......  3 
 
 Details for general fund. 
 
Capital Plan………………………………………………………………    4 
 
Capital spending for the current year vs. budget, by department.  Also includes five-year history 
of budget vs. actual and information on related fund balance. 
 
Investments……………………………………………………………..     5 
 
Summary of cash and investments by type and institution.  



- 1 -

BUDGET VS. ACTUALS 2023 2023 Percent of
Budget Actual Budget 2022 %'s

Taxes & Penalties 46,845,854$    25,559,403$  55% 55%
Licenses & Permits 541,580           366,519         68% 50%
Intergovernmental 24,267,976      10,677,971    44% 35%
Charges for Services 3,366,782        2,171,156      64% 65%
Fines & Forfeitures 11,600             6,152             53% 51%
Gifts & Contributions 18,000             11,886           66% 113%
Interest 703,530           1,342,945      191% 79% A
Other Revenues & Financing Sources 2,059,748        1,241,514      60% 58%
Transfers In 1,484,823        1,119,718      75% 438%
   Total Revenues 79,299,893$    42,497,264$  54% 52%
Planned Use of Fund Balance 6,367,899$      
   Adjusted Revenues 85,667,792$    

2022 VS. 2023 2022 2023 Over/(Under) Over/(Under)
Actual Actual Prior Year ($) Prior Year (%)

Taxes & Penalties 24,036,167$    25,559,403$  1,523,236$    6%
Licenses & Permits 267,024           366,519         99,495           37%
Intergovernmental 8,662,079        10,677,971    2,015,892      23%
Charges for Services 2,328,859        2,171,156      (157,703)        -7%
Fines & Forfeitures 5,972               6,152             180                3%
Gifts & Contributions 20,293             11,886           (8,407)            -41%
Interest 436,857           1,342,945      906,088         207% A
Other Revenues & Financing Sources 1,167,237        1,241,514      74,277           6%
Transfers In 2,651,523        1,119,718      (1,531,805)     -58%
   Total Revenues 39,576,011$    42,497,264$  2,921,253$    7%

EXPLANATION SECTION

A  See investment tab for details

2nd Quarter Financial Report - Revenues



- 2 -

BUDGET VS. ACTUALS 2023 2023 Percent of
Budget Actual Budget 2022 %'s

Public Assistance 6,977,884$      3,311,615$    47% 48%
Personnel Services 38,711,110      17,997,947    46% 47%
Services & Charges 23,292,031      6,619,002      28% 35%
Supplies & Materials 2,898,954        1,319,199      46% 55%
Capital Outlay 7,042,368        2,623,201      37% 21% A
Debt Service 1,820,283        1,632,357      90% 87% B
Other Expenses 2,606,389        2,313,735      89% 83%
Transfers Out 1,484,823        1,119,717      75% 438%
   Total Expenses 84,833,842$    36,936,773$  44% 47%
Future Fund Balance 833,950$         
Adjusted Expenses 85,667,792$    

2022 VS. 2023 2022 2023 Over/(Under) Over/(Under)
Actual Actual Prior Year ($) Prior Year (%)

Public Assistance 2,992,526$      3,311,615$    319,089$       11%
Personnel Services 16,754,277      17,997,947    1,243,670      7%
Services & Charges 7,957,925        6,619,002      (1,338,923)     -17%
Supplies & Materials 1,344,957        1,319,199      (25,758)          -2%
Capital Outlay 1,307,307        2,623,201      1,315,894      101% A
Debt Service 1,608,787        1,632,357      23,570           1%
Other Expenses 2,028,658        2,313,735      285,077         14%
Transfers Out 2,651,523        1,119,717      (1,531,806)     -58%
   Total Expenses 36,645,960$    36,936,773$  290,813$       1%

EXPLANATION SECTION

A   Amounts budgeted and spent fluctuate based on capital plan and timing of projects completed.
B   Debt service principal payments due in Feb.

2nd Quarter Financial Report - Expenses



-3-

General Fund
Fund Balance Report (Cash Basis)

June 2023

Cash on Hand - General Fund 34,933,510.99$  
   Restrictions (2,662,156.31)     
   Commitments (3,481,873.04)     
   Assignments (3,204,164.30)     
      Unassigned Fund Balance (Cash on Hand) 25,585,317.34$  

2022 2023 2023 2023 2023 Balance
Restrictions Balance Levy Revenues Expenses Activity (net) 6/30/2023
Unclaimed Funds 1,188.48$          -$                   469.82$               -$                  469.82$             1,658.30$           
Gravel Pit Closure/Restoration 331,057.28        -                     5,641.27              -                    5,641.27            336,698.55         
ARP - American Rescue Plan 4,082,631.14     -                     -                      3,997,393.76    (3,997,393.76)    85,237.38           
Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency 50,000.00          -                     -                      -                    -                     50,000.00           
Law Library 310,068.97        -                     45,304.04            26,600.93         18,703.11          328,772.08         
Attorney's Forfeiture Fund 35,640.11          -                     6,367.67              5,275.00           1,092.67            36,732.78           
Attorney Victim/Witness Assistance 6,186.29            -                     502.07                 607.80              (105.73)              6,080.56             
Drug Treatment Court 364,152.44        -                     63,285.00            71,206.26         (7,921.26)           356,231.18         
Recorder's Technology Fund 148,341.66        -                     31,490.00            -                    31,490.00          179,831.66         
Recorder's Compliance Fund 250,484.75        -                     34,639.00            26,816.85         7,822.15            258,306.90         
Veterans Operational Grant 6,752.66            -                     -                      6,562.27           (6,562.27)           190.39                
Veterans Transportation (donations) * -                     -                     6,770.00              6,770.00           -                     -                      
Buffer Initiative 293,067.00        -                     -                      -                    -                     293,067.00         
Aquatic Invasive Species Prevention 222,643.54        -                     -                      35,157.19         (35,157.19)         187,486.35         
Sheriff's Forfeiture Fund -                     -                     -                      -                    -                     -                      
Sheriff CounterAct 22,947.04          -                     2,128.61              1,244.68           883.93               23,830.97           
Sheriff's K-9 Account (donations) 20,353.00          -                     1,831.00              -                    1,831.00            22,184.00           
Gun Permit Application Fees 60,700.29          -                     35,625.00            38,149.15         (2,524.15)           58,176.14           
Sheriff's Contingency 850.00               -                     2,870.92              -                    2,870.92            3,720.92             
Enhanced 911 System 339,886.94        -                     133,834.76          158,775.66       (24,940.90)         314,946.04         
Correction Service Fee 21,565.00          -                     890.00                 1,300.62           (410.62)              21,154.38           
Local Correctional Fees (Adult) 84,553.23          -                     28,297.50            15,000.00         13,297.50          97,850.73           
     Restricted Fund Balance 6,653,069.82$   -$                   399,946.66$        4,390,860.17$  (3,990,913.51)$  2,662,156.31$    

2022 2023 2023 2023 2023 Balance
Commitments Balance Levy Revenues Expenses Activity (net) 6/30/2023
Land Use/Environmental Ordinance 176,149.36$      -$                   132.10$               -$                  132.10$             176,281.46$       
Petty Cash Change Funds 1,775.00            -                     -                      -                    -                     1,775.00             
Employee Wellness Committee 11,043.12          -                     1,101.00              1,182.57           (81.57)                10,961.55           
Byllesby Dam 13,345.24          -                     -                      -                    -                     13,345.24           
Compensated Absences 417,700.46        463,500.00        -                      319,790.88       143,709.12        561,409.58         
27th Payroll 896,741.00        425,000.00        -                      -                    425,000.00        1,321,741.00      
Tax Court Settlements 226,500.00        -                     -                      1,000.00           (1,000.00)           225,500.00         
Natural, tech, human-caused hazards 1,000,000.00     -                     -                      -                    -                     1,000,000.00      
Tax Forfeited Property Funding 170,859.21        -                     -                      -                    -                     170,859.21         
     Committed Fund Balance 2,914,113.39$   888,500.00$      1,233.10$            321,973.45$     567,759.65$      3,481,873.04$    

2022 2023 2023 2023 2023 Balance
Assignments Balance Levy Revenues Expenses Activity (net) 6/30/2023
Election Activities 49,034.44$        61,000.00$        9,863.68$            24,776.83$       46,086.85          95,121.29           
County Motor Pool 119,142.45        -                     31,386.30            19,574.35         11,811.95          130,954.40         
Inmate Improvement Fund 108,141.62        -                     17,562.69            11,603.58         5,959.11            114,100.73         
Radio Tower Repairs 70,301.88          20,000.00          -                      26,820.77         (6,820.77)           63,481.11           
Rural Identification Funds -                     -                     6,304.67              67.11                6,237.56            6,237.56             
Employee Training & Development -                     39,750.00          -                      10,952.48         28,797.52          28,797.52           
County Program Aid Contingency 1,518,110.69     -                     -                      -                    -                     1,518,110.69      
Building Contingencies 1,247,361.00     -                     -                      -                    -                     1,247,361.00      
     Assigned Fund Balance 3,112,092.08$   120,750.00$      65,117.34$          93,795.12$       92,072.22$        3,204,164.30$    

*Note the Veteran Transportation expense in excess of revenue was $19,426.41 on June 30, 2023.



- 4 -

Through Q2
Budget 
Request

Capital
Carryovers & 
Bonding Plan 
Adjustments

Final 
Budget

Amount 
Expended

Budget 
Balance

2023  $         3,988,441  $       2,342,351  $       6,330,792  $            2,299,757  $        4,031,035 
2022  $         3,089,768  $       1,361,305  $       4,451,073  $             1,192,350  $        3,258,723 
2021  $         2,564,134  $          519,916  $       3,084,050  $                991,512  $        2,092,538 
2020 2,876,560$         430,883$           3,307,443$       1,072,688$             2,234,755$         
2019 2,819,135$         61,454$             2,880,589$       1,043,738$             1,836,851$         

2023 2022 2023 2023 2023
Budget Capital Final Amount Budget
Request Carryovers Budget Expended Balance

Administration 4,980                   -                      4,980                 -                               4,980                   
Attorney 10,996                 173,904             184,900             -                               184,900              
County Board 1,037                   -                      1,037                 -                               1,037                   
Court Services 1,173                   -                      1,173                 1,406                       (233)                     
Extension -                       866                     866                    -                               866                      
Facilities Maintenance 1,306,918           5,092                 1,312,010         775,594                  536,416              
Finance & Taxpayer Services 126,121               245,390             371,511             211,823                  159,688              
Fleet -                       72,780               72,780               -                               72,780                 
General Government -                       -                      -                          9,335                       (9,335)                 
Health & Human Services 22,822                 -                      22,822               -                               22,822                 
Human Resources 2,577                   -                      2,577                 -                               2,577                   
Information Technology 28,473                 127,246             155,719             4,378                       151,341              
Planning/Building/Zoning/EH 78,000                 10,063               88,063               -                               88,063                 
Public Works 739,117               1,269,870          2,008,987         895,938                  1,113,049           
Recorder 10,000                 -                      10,000               -                               10,000                 
Sheriff:
   ADC 141,625               3,358                 144,983             18,672                     126,311              
   Civil/Patrol Division 702,395               117,266             819,661             154,140                  665,521              
  Communication Infrastructure 70,003 81,732               151,735             80,524                     71,211                 
  Seasonal B&W 195,934               8,448                 204,382             8,632                       195,750              
Surveyor/GIS 101,664               3,006                 104,670             -                               104,670              
Waste Management 444,606               223,330             667,936             139,315                  528,622              
   Total Capital Plan Budget 3,988,441$         2,342,351$        6,330,792$       2,299,757$             4,031,035$         
     Use of Fund Balance: General Rev (62,000)                -                      (62,000)              -                           (62,000)               
     Use of Fund Balance: ARPA (1,254,668)          -                      (1,254,668)        -                           (1,254,668)          
     Transfer: Sheriff Contingency (4,300)                  -                      (4,300)                -                           (4,300)                 
     2022 Capital Carryover -                       (2,342,351)        (2,342,351)        -                           (2,342,351)          

2,667,473$         -$                   2,667,473$       2,299,757$             367,716$            

2023
2023 Balance Forward 2,515,713$         
Funding Sources:
   Tax Settlement & Related Aids 1,421,399           
   Sale of Capital Assets (net) 90,818                 
   Energy Rebates -                       
   Other Reimbursements -                       
   Transfers: Other Revenue Sources 810,000               
2023 Plan Purchases (2,299,757)          

6/30/2023 2,538,173$         

2023 CAPITAL PLAN REPORT - SUMMARY

2nd Quarter Financial Report - Capital Plan

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Capital Fund - Fund Balance, 2019-2023    



- 5 -

2nd Quarter Financial Report - Investments



Amanda Holst 
Human Resources Generalist 

Goodhue County 
 

509 W. Fifth Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

651.385.3031 
(f) 651.267.4872 

Amanda.Holst@co.goodhue.mn.us 
 
 
TO: Goodhue County Commissioners 

FROM: Amanda Holst, HR Generalist 

DATE: July 31, 2023 

RE: 2023 Staffing Report (through July) 

Effective 
Date Status Name Position Notes 

1/1/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Sutton Brown, Steve 

Patrol Sergeant - 
Civil replacing Jay Kindseth 

1/5/2023 
Employment 
Ended Bowron, Matt Patrol Deputy   

1/6/2023 
Employment 
Ended McCarthy, Malachy Patrol Deputy   

1/6/2023 
Employment 
Ended Gronquist, Alison Summer Help   

1/6/2023 
Employment 
Ended Fiedler, Emma Summer Help   

1/9/2023 New Hire 
Germann-Hutter, 
Leslie  

Facilities Maint. 
Tech replacing John Kleeberger 

1/9/2023 New Hire Hayen, Matthew Patrol Deputy replacing John Madden 

1/9/2023 New Hire Seaton, Brooke  
Juvenile Case 
Administrator replacing Michelle Walker 

1/9/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Otterness, Leslie 

Office Support 
Specialist replacing Katie Kosmach 

1/10/2023 
Employment 
Ended Czech, Joseph 

Facilities 
Maintenance Tech   

1/12/2023 
Employment 
Ended Iverson, Dylan  

Highway 
Equipment 
Operator   

1/17/2023 New Hire Eckblad, Kevin 
Facilities 
Maintenance Tech replacing Dennis Andrews 

1/20/2023 
Employment 
Ended Kindseth, Jay 

Patrol Sergeant - 
Civil   

1/23/2023 New Hire Stubfors, Sara  Appraiser replacing Jordan Hillstead 

1/24/2023 
Employment 
Ended Johnson, Jason Patrol Deputy II   



 
 

2/1/2023 
Employment 
Ended O'Connor, Deb 

Legal Secretary/ 
Case Aide   

2/1/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Carda, Amy 

Legal Secretary/ 
Case Aide replacing Deb O'Connor 

2/1/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Hase, Nicole Legal Secretary replacing Amy Carda 

2/6/2023 New Hire Walker, Julie  Appraiser replacing Austin Noble 

2/17/2023 
Employment 
Ended Ahern, Dennis 

Appraiser - 
Summer Help   

2/21/2023 New Hire Kirpas, Robert  
Support 
Enforcement Aide replacing Jennifer George 

2/23/2023 
Employment 
Ended Pierret, Patrick Appraiser   

2/23/2023 
Employment 
Ended 

Davis-Boulden, 
Shalecka Detention Deputy   

2/27/2023 New Hire Aslakson, Rachel  
Records Support 
Specialist replacing Amanda Roy 

2/28/2023 
Employment 
Ended Otterness, Leslie 

Office Support 
Specialist   

2/28/2023 New Hire McInnis, Becca  Appraiser replacing Mike Smith 
2/28/2023 New Hire Vold, Jesse Detention Deputy replacing Anthony Wempner 

3/4/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Grabau, Mitch Sergeant Deputy II replacing Jason Johnson 

3/6/2023 New Hire Anway, Amanda  Social Worker replacing Analise Dressen 

3/6/2023 New Hire Blue, Nicholas 
Engineering 
Technician replacing Cory Wersal 

3/13/2023 New Hire Dicke, Alex Design Manager replacing Ethan Seaberg 
3/13/2023 New Hire Sell, Brandon Patrol Deputy   

3/14/2023 New Hire Kindseth, Jay 
67 day 
Civil/Transport   

3/17/2023 
Employment 
Ended Hanson, Josh 

Emergency 
Management 
Director   

3/20/2023 New Hire Archer, Ryan 
IT Technical 
Support replacing Hannah Carlson 

3/20/2023 New Hire DeWall, Samantha 
Public Safety 
Telecommunicator replacing Wayne Betcher 

3/27/2023 
Employment 
Ended Jacobson, Jeremy Detention Deputy   

3/27/2023 New Hire Baack, Sarah Patrol Deputy replacing Tyler Rogers 

3/27/2023 New Hire Hesse, Justin 
67 day boat and 
water   

3/31/2023 
Employment 
Ended Schwartau, Jane 

Public Health 
Nurse   

4/3/2023 New Hire Eskeldson, Thomes Detention Deputy replacing Nicolas Schwartz 

4/5/2023 
Employment 
Ended 

Koberoski, 
Alexandra Zoning Assistant   



 
 

4/10/2023 New Hire Rabehl, Rita  
Eligibility Worker (2 
year provisional) replacing Nicole Jude 

4/10/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Eggert, Les 

Highway 
Superintendent Replacing Matt Peters 

4/14/2023 
Employment 
Ended Freier, Jeanne 

Public Health 
Nurse   

4/17/2023 New Hire Maves, Pierre Patrol Deputy replacing Michael Erdman 

4/21/2023 
Employment 
Ended Wegner, Zach Eligibility Worker   

5/1/2023 
Employment 
Ended Hanson, BreAnna Patrol Deputy   

5/1/2023 New Hire Stumm, Johnathan 
67 day boat and 
water   

5/5/2023 
Employment 
Ended Jaeger, Mark 

Court Services 
Director   

5/12/2023 
Employment 
Ended DeWall, Samantha 

Public Safety 
Telecommunicator   

5/13/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Naatz, Thomas 

IT Network 
Engineer replacing Aaron Flaugh 

5/15/2023 New Hire Fiedler, Emma Summer Help- HR   

5/15/2023 New Hire Merchlewitz, Earl 

Emergency 
Management 
Director replacing Josh Hanson 

5/15/2023 New Hire Resendez, Chloe  Detention Deputy 
replacing Shalecka Davis-
Boulden 

5/19/2023 
Employment 
Ended Cichosz, Maggie 

Community 
Engagement 
Specialist   

5/19/2023 
Employment 
Ended Sivigny, Melissa  

Emergency 
Management 
Clerk   

5/22/2023 New Hire Angell, Jacob Summer Help- PW    

5/22/2023 New Hire Delk, John Detention Deputy replacing Carrie Siebenaler 

5/22/2023 New Hire Lerfald, Hailey Summer Help- PW    

5/22/2023 New Hire McMillan, Chris 
IT Communications 
Support Specialist replacing Thomas Naatz 

5/22/2023 New Hire Stein-Dodd, Eliza  
Public Safety 
Telecommunicator replacing Leslie Otterness 

5/22/2023 New Hire Wright, Dominique 
Office Support 
Specialist replacing Leslie Otterness 

5/23/2023 New Hire LaPlante, Joseph  Patrol Deputy   

5/23/2023 New Hire Taube, Andrew Summer Help- PW    



 
 

5/23/2023 New Hire Zorn, Johan Summer Help- PW    

5/28/2023 
Employment 
Ended Key, Jason Patrol Deputy   

5/30/2023 New Hire Greseth, Nicholas 
Facilities 
Maintenance Tech replacing Joseph Czech 

5/30/2023 New Hire Taube, Dylan Summer Help- PW    

5/30/2023 New Hire Matthew Cain 
Summer Help- 
Assessor's office   

5/30/2023 New Hire Derek Achen Summer Help- PW    

5/31/2023 
Employment 
Ended Betcher, Wayne 

Public Safety 
Telecommunicator 
Sgt.    

6/1/2023 
Employment 
Ended Kelly, Carolyn 

Administrative 
Assistant   

6/1/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Rogers, Tyler Investigator replacing Steve Sutton-Brown 

6/2/2023 
Employment 
Ended Griebling, Ember Social Worker   

6/5/2023 New Hire Krumwiede, Andrea  

Administrative 
Assistant- Vets 
Office   

6/5/2023 New Hire Weigman, Branden  Detention Deputy Replacing Tucker Lemmerman 

6/5/2023 New Hire White, Cody  Detention Deputy replacing Charles Unruh 

6/6/2023 
Employment 
Ended Huneke, Julie 

Office Mgr/ 
Accountant   

6/7/2023 New Hire Bergin, Breck  
Summer Help- 
Administration   

6/10/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Garrick, Ariana PST Sergeant replacing Wayne Betcher 

6/12/2023 New Hire Nelson, Mary  
Public Health 
Nurse Supervisor replacing Brooke Hawkenson 

6/12/2023 New Hire Hofer, Shelly  Eligibility Worker 
replacing Zach Wegner / Rita 
Rabehl (temp) 

6/12/2023 New Hire Schafer, Ethan Patrol Deputy replacing Mitch Grabau 

6/12/2023 New Hire Boeding, Eli Summer Help- PW    

6/12/2023 New Hire Gatz, Cameron 
Summer Help- 
Assessor's office   

6/14/2023 
Employment 
Ended McMillan, Chris 

IT Communications 
Support Specialist   



 
 

6/22/2023 
Employment 
Ended Roraff, Alyssa Detention Deputy   

6/26/2023 
Employment 
Ended Harris, John Patrol Deputy   

6/26/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Bauer, Kathy Permit Technician   

6/26/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer 

VanSchoonhoven, 
Rhonda  

Court Services 
Director replacing Mark Jaeger 

6/29/2023 
Employment 
Ended Harris, John Patrol Deputy   

6/26/2023 
Employment 
Ended Arntson, Jamie Eligibility Worker   

6/30/2023 New Hire Petersen, Matthew 
Intern- Sheriff's 
Office   

7/3/2023 New Hire Berg, Jennifer  Legal Secretary replacing Nicole Hase 

7/10/2023 New Hire Havican, Simon  Highway Foreman replacing Les Eggert 

7/11/2023 New Hire Lenzen, William  Zoning Assistant replacing Alex Koberoski 

7/13/2023 
Employment 
Ended Kotajarvi, Justin Patrol Deputy   

7/21/2023 
Employment 
Ended Chaska, Savannah Permit Technician   

7/24/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Whitehead, Kainen Patrol Deputy replacing Jason Key 

7/24/2023 
Promotion/  
Transfer Ferguson, Janet Probation Officer 

replacing Rhonda 
VanSchoonhoven 

7/26/2023 New Hire Stewart, Toni 
ARPA Intern- 
Finance/HHS   

7/27/2023 
Employment 
Ended Stewart, Toni 

ARPA Intern- 
Finance/HHS   

 



Regular Board 
 
August 2023 
 
To:   The Honorable Goodhue County Commissioners 
 
From:   Linda Flanders, Chairman of the Cannon Valley Trail Joint Powers Board 
              Scott Roepke, Trail Manager of the Cannon Valley Trail 
 
Re:   UPDATE:  Cannon Valley Trail grant application to Greater Minnesota Regional Parks and Trails 

Commission Grant Program - Bridge and Bituminous Replacement Project.   
 
 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The Cannon Valley Trail (CVT) Joint Powers Board received approval by the Goodhue County Board of 
Commissioners on July 18th, 2023 that Goodhue County would be the sponsoring unit of government for the 
Greater Minnesota Regional Parks and Trails Commission Grant Program application. The CVT is applying for 
grant dollars to replace one bridge and 4.5 miles of bituminous.   
 
The original cost estimates which were presented to the Goodhue County Board on July 18th, 2023 were: 
Total Cost Estimate:  $1,934,240 
CVT Match 25%:  $483,560 
Grant Funds 75%:  $1,450,680 
 
The cost estimates changed slightly between Goodhue County Board approval on July 18th, 2023 and the grant 
deadline of July 31, 2023.  The new cost estimates are as follows: 
Total Cost Estimate:  $2,294,124 
CVT Match 25%:  $573,531 
Grant Funds 75%:  $1,720,593 
 
 
This memo is to update the Goodhue County Board of Commissioners on the new cost estimates for the 
replacement of one bridge and 4.5 miles of bituminous.  The 25% match of $573,531 will be the responsibility of 
the CVT and be drawn from CVT Capital Improvement and Reserve Funds.  No funds are being sought from 
Goodhue County. 
 
BACK GROUND 
 
The (CVT) Joint Powers Board received approval by the Goodhue County Board of Commissioners on July 18th, 
2023 that Goodhue County would be the sponsoring unit of government for the Greater Minnesota Regional Parks 
and Trails Commission Grant Program application. The CVT is applying for grant dollars to replace one bridge 
and 4.5 miles of bituminous.   
 
 
ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS/IMPACT    
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
This report is an update and there are no recommendations at this time. 



 
Goodhue County Public Works 

Project Status Report for August 10, 2023 
 

ROUTE TYPE OF WORK/PROJECT LOCATION CURRENT STATUS 

 Bidding  
 

CSAH 63 Curb and Sidewalk Replacement near Wanagmingo 
School 

Quotes due back August 4th.  Work to be 
completed by September 1st, if awarded. 

CSAH 11 & 
CSAH 12 Pipe Relays Quotes due back August 11th.  Work to be 

completed by September 29th, if awarded. 

Various 2023 Weed Spraying 
County Wide 

Quotes due back August 11th.  Work to be 
completed by November 3rd, if awarded. 

 Road Construction  

CSAH 2 Bridge 25625  

Project awarded to Redstone Construction.  
Work began May 30th.  Construction 
substantially complete. Turf establishment yet to 
be completed. 

CSAH 6 2023 Concrete Rehabilitation Project awarded to Interstate Improvement. 
Work scheduled to begin August 13. 

Various 2023 Guardrail 
CSAH 7 & 8 

Project awarded to Mattison Contractors.  Work 
complete.  Need to final. 

Various 2023 Traffic Marking 
County Wide 

Project awarded to Sir Lines-A-Lot.  Work 
complete.  Need to final. 

Various 2023 Seal Coat Project awarded to Scott Construction.  Work 
complete.  Need to final. 

Various 2023 Micro-Surfacing 
Project awarded to ASTECH.  Work began 
August 2nd.  Final striping to be completed after 
curing period. 

Various 2023 Bituminous Paving 

Project awarded to Rochester Sand & Gravel.  
Work began May 10th.  Paving completed on 
CSAH 7, CR 48, CSAH 6, CSAH 4, and CR 53.  
Contractor is currently paving CSAH 18. 

Twp Bridge 25623 Cherry Grove Twp Project awarded to ICON Constructors.  Project 
complete, need to final. 

CSAH 11 Bridge L0463 

Project awarded to Fitzgerald Trucking and 
Excavating.  Work complete.  Project 
recommended for finalization at August 10 
Board Meeting. 

Twp 2022 Box Culverts 
Wanamingo & Kenyon Twps. 

Project awarded to Fitzgerald Trucking and 
Excavating.  Work complete.  Project 
recommended for finalization at August 10 
Board Meeting. 



ROUTE TYPE OF WORK/PROJECT LOCATION CURRENT STATUS 

CSAH 24 CSAH 24: SEC-N 
Grading, Aggregate Base & Shouldering, Storm Sewer 

Project awarded to Northland Grading & 
Excavating.  Construction completed.  Project 
needs to be finaled. 

 
 
 
 

Parks & Trails  

Byllesby Byllesby Park Pavilion Construction 

Lift Bridge Builders awarded the construction 
contract.  Finish plumbing, septic, painting, 
security system, and landscaping still to be 
completed.  Anticipated completion in August. 

Byllesby Prairie Restoration 

Prairie was dormant seeded fall of 2021.  Site to 
be monitored for prairie species germination, 
weed species control, and maintenance mowing 
needs.  Potential maintenance burn fall 2023. 

 
 Maintenance Department  

 Mowing roadside ditches 
Various Work in progress. 

Various Aggregate Surfacing 
CR 49, 44, & 41 Work in progress. 

 Planning & Studies  

St Paul - 
Chicago Great River Rail Commission 

The Commission continues to advocate for the 
Twin Cities – Milwaukee – Chicago Intercity 
City Passenger Rail Service, or the TCMC 
Second Train, or the TCMC second train to 
Chicago.  The Commission has begun the final 
design phase for the improvements needed for 
the second, daily round trip passenger rail 
project. These plans should be complete by 
the summer of 2023 with service starting in 
2024.  

 


	Grant form
	EMPG 2021 Contract
	Budget Revisions:  The breakdown of costs of the Grantee’s Budget is contained in Exhibit A, which is attached and incorporated into this grant contract agreement.  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program Guidelines, the Grantee will ...
	Matching Requirements:  (If applicable.) As stated in the Grantee’s Application, the Grantee certifies that the matching requirement will be met by the Grantee.
	Payment:  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program Guidance, the State will promptly pay the Grantee after the Grantee presents an invoice for the services actually performed and the State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoic...

	2022 Grant form
	EMPG 2022 Contract
	Budget Revisions:  The breakdown of costs of the Grantee’s Budget is contained in Exhibit A, which is attached and incorporated into this grant contract agreement.  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program Guidelines, the Grantee will ...
	Matching Requirements:  (If applicable.) As stated in the Grantee’s Application, the Grantee certifies that the matching requirement will be met by the Grantee.
	Payment:  As stated in the Grantee’s Application and Grant Program Guidance, the State will promptly pay the Grantee after the Grantee presents an invoice for the services actually performed and the State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoic...

	Final CSAH 11 Bridge
	Jess L. Greenwood, P.E.

	CP 025-011-001 Final Payment
	Resolution - Final CSAH 11 Bridge
	BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
	GOODHUE COUNTY, MINNESOTA

	Final SAP 025-599-128 & SAP 025-599-129
	Jess L. Greenwood, P.E.

	SAP 025-599-128 & 025-599-129 Final Payment
	Resolution - Final SAP 025-599-128 & SAP 025-599-129
	BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
	GOODHUE COUNTY, MINNESOTA

	Xcel Letter Memo
	Xcel Consultation Letter - Response
	Goodhue County signed consultation letter_7 14 2023
	2nd Quarter 2023 Report
	Title Page
	Table of Contents
	REVENUES
	EXPENSES
	FUND BALANCE
	CP Summary
	Investments
	LOOKUPS
	Pivot Table-IFS Download
	Pivot Table
	IFS Download
	report parameters

	FY23 Q2 report-cover pages
	Project Status Report for June August 1020, 2023
	ROUTE



